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This is the second year of my term as Chairman and is the Authority's

eleventh year of operation.  Under the leadership of my predecessors,

Sir S Y CHUNG and Mr Peter WOO, and with the hard work of all

Hospital Authority staff, we have successfully transformed the quality

of public hospital services in Hong Kong over the past decade.  However,

this remarkable achievement has also brought us some great challenges

in the years ahead.

In the 90's, heavy investments into the Hospital Authority, together

with management reengineering, have markedly improved the quality

of our subsidised healthcare services.  However, such improvements

have boosted demand enormously.  Public hospital services in Hong

Kong has grown significantly in recent years at a compound annual

growth rate of 6.5% for inpatient admissions, 7.4% for specialist

outpatient attendances and 7.2% for accident and emergency

attendances.  As we are now suffering from severe budgetary constraints

while being given the task of making continuous improvements in the

level and quality of service, our healthcare professionals are constantly

working under great pressure.

In 2001/02, our staff had worked with dedication and commitment

towards meeting these challenges.  Many initiatives to enhance the

productivity and operational efficiency of our work were implemented.

For instance, a new cluster management structure was introduced with

the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives to facilitate cluster-based

rationalisation and integration of clinical and supporting services.

Programmes to develop more clinical specialty centres were initiated

with a view to avoiding duplication of services.  Development of a central

purchasing system had started to improve cost-effectiveness.  In addition,

operational efficiency was achieved through the redeployment of existing

staff to commission new services, continued administrative downsizing

of the Head Office and hospital management, outsourcing of business

support services, and introduction of more automated systems.

Initiatives had also been implemented to prioritise our services to care

for the more urgent cases over the non-urgent ones.

Chairman’s Foreword
�� !
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While implementing various strategies for generating productivity

savings and service prioritisation under stringent budgetary conditions,

we had taken extra care to ensure that the overall quality of healthcare

was not compromised.  In 2001/02, we continued to develop evidence-

based medical practice, implement the mechanism for safe introduction

of new procedures, perform regular clinical audits, and improve the

two-tier complaint management system to help assure the quality of

patient care.  The quality of our mental health and pharmacy services

was also improved by extending service coverage of the Community

Psychiatric Teams, introduction of new psychiatric drugs, development

of new models for early detection of mental problems among young

people, setting up of satellite pharmacies, round-the-clock pharmacies

and medication compliance clinics, and enhancement of the pharmacy

information systems.

To ensure the long-term financial sustainability of our current public

hospital system, we worked closely with Government during the year to

follow up on the recommendations proposed in the Consultation

Document on Healthcare Reform, "Lifelong Investment in Health".

We completed a consultancy review on the fees structure of public

hospital services and its impact on utilisation and affordability to help

Government develop proposals for revamping the fees structure.  If

implemented by Government, these proposals should help us prioritise

public subsidies to areas of greatest needs.  Support was also provided to

Government to formulate study plans for the proposed Health Protection

Account.  To alleviate the public-private imbalance in utilisation of

healthcare services, programmes were implemented to mobilise the

private healthcare sector and give patients more choices through the

introduction of common referral guidelines, promotion of legal sharing

of patient information, and development of collaborative models of

service provision in individual specialties.  We also initiated a review of

the medical insurance industry and started working with private doctors

and hospitals to develop effective medical insurance schemes.
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Despite increasing financial and work pressure, the Authority had made

important steps towards achieving its corporate vision of collaborating

with other healthcare providers to create a cooperative healthcare

environment for maximising healthcare benefits and meeting community

expectations in 2001/02.  These achievements were a credit to all the

Authority staff who had worked ceaselessly in providing quality

healthcare services to the people of Hong Kong.  On behalf of the

Authority Board, I would like to take this opportunity to express my

most heartfelt thanks to them.

I would also like to extend my appreciation to the members of the

Authority Board who had worked and supported the executives and

myself to develop and implement the above-mentioned strategic reform

measures.  I am also grateful to the efforts of the Regional Advisory

Committees and Hospital Governing Committees.  Their commitment,

support and advice had been an inspiration and guiding light for the

Authority.  We were particularly indebted to Dr E K YEOH, our

Secretary for Health, Welfare & Food, for giving us his policy guidance

and unfailing support.  Last but not the least, we would like to offer our

sincere gratitude to all those who served the Authority in many different

ways during the year.  Without the invaluable contribution and

enthusiastic support from the community, the Legislative Council,

District Councils, and most importantly the volunteers who worked

selflessly in our hospitals, the Authority could hardly make such a good

progress in its work at this time of great challenges.

Stepping into its next ten years of operation, the Hospital Authority has

experienced a wide range of new challenges and opportunities.  Difficult

times are ahead and there are a host of budget deficit and human resource

issues for the Authority to tackle.  However, with a strong culture for

the management of change and a team of dedicated healthcare

professionals, I am confident that the Authority will be able to overcome

all the obstacles hindering its future development and develop into a

knowledge-based, competent, efficient and caring healthcare organisation

capable of meeting the needs of Hong Kong people.  I look forward to

the continued support and concerted efforts from all concerned in the

years to come.

LO Ka-shui, JP, Chairman
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Introduction
In 2001/02, the Authority continued to face the daunting

challenge of meeting the incessantly increasing demand for

public hospital services in the context of severe budgetary

constraints and ever rising public expectations.  Despite a

more stabilised rate of increase in service volume in the past

few years, our public hospital system was still called on to

provide 1,208,427 inpatient and day patient discharges

2,522,972 Accident & Emergency attendances, 6,090,446

specialist outpatients attendances, 2,452,914 allied health

outpatient attendances, and 887,328 general outpatient

attendances during the year.

To meet the unprecedented challenges, the Authority

deliberated carefully on its priorities of work in 2001/02 and

reaffirmed the following six priority areas for organising its

improvement initiatives:

• Access and Volume;

• Enhanced Productivity Programme;

• Financing and Resource Allocation System;

• Distribution Network and Infrastructure;

• Quality of Care; and

• Human Resource Capabilities and
Management.

Chief Executive’s Overview
�� !"#
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Under the six priority work areas, the Authority initiated a total of 249

improvement targets during the year to enhance the accessibility,

effectiveness, efficiency and quality of its services.  All these targets were

achieved with results either in line with or exceeding the original targets

except for eight, which were partially achieved or deferred because of

changed circumstances.

With the implementation of these targets, the Authority had improved

dynamism and stimulated progress in the organisation while preserving

its strength established over the past years.  These improvement measures

are summarised below.

Access and Volume
While awaiting the introduction of more fundamental reforms by

Government to address the imbalance of public and private sectors in

the provision of healthcare services, the Authority continued to

implement measures permissible under existing policies to tackle the

volume and access issue facing the public hospital system.

The overall service capacity of public hospitals was expanded for better

access in the year by commissioning 139 additional acute general beds,

392 rehabilitation/infirmary beds, four intensive care beds, 34 psychiatric

beds and 40 psychiatric day places.  Service coverage was also improved

to optimise access in the provision of gynaecology, community

psychiatric and community geriatric services, as well as extending service

hours and coverage of the additional Magnetic Resonance Imaging

service and haemodialysis service.

To address the operational issues of volume demand, new initiatives

were implemented to segregate the non-urgent from urgent Accident

& Emergency attendance for care by primary care professionals; and to

make cluster-based contingency management of medical patients to

accommodate seasonal fluctuations.  There were increased capacities of

the integrated clinics together with development of inter-specialty referral

guidelines to relieve the workload of the specialist outpatient clinics.
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Enhanced Productivity Programme
Under the Enhanced Productivity Programme, the Authority's recurrent

funding from Government would be adjusted downwards by 5% for

the three financial years starting 2000/01.  This requirement reduced

the Authority's baseline budget by 2% in 2001/02, imposing great

pressure on its financial position given the growing service volume and

the over 11% productivity savings previously achieved.

Apart from rationalisation of clinical services, the Authority adopted a

number of strategies to achieve the savings requirement during the year.

Instead of recruiting new staff, existing staff were redeployed to meet

the manpower requirement for the opening of new beds and facilities.

Substantial savings were also realised by facilitating implementation of

the Government's voluntary retirement scheme among the ex-civil

servants in the Authority and converting Lai Chi Kok Hospital into a

long stay care home to be operated with funding from the welfare sector.

Significant efforts were made to downsize the management structure in

the Head Office and hospitals.  Further productivity savings were

generated through energy conservation schemes, automation of office

and supporting functions, and contracting out of laundry services and

other business support services.

Financing and Resource Allocation System
Despite stringent savings measures, the Authority still recorded for the

first time a deficit equivalent to about 0.7% of the budget in 2001/02,

primarily resulting from high staff costs, low staff turnover rate and the

need to continue recruiting new clinical staff to cope with the ever-

increasing service demand.  This, together with the unfavourable financial

outlook for the coming year, would draw on the Authority's reserve

accumulated over previous years.

To address these issues, the Authority assisted Government in the

formulation of healthcare reform plans and their consultation process

as a strategy externally.  Internally, much work had gone to the

development of an equitable resource allocation system for effective and

efficient use of available resources.
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Following up on the Government Consultation Document's proposal

to target subsidies at areas of greatest needs, the Authority conducted

on behalf of Government a consultancy study on the public hospital

fees structure and its impact on service utilisation and affordability.  A

review on the Authority's private ward charges was also performed to

formulate short-term and long-term recommendations to properly reflect

actual cost of the services provided to private patients.  In addition,

support was provided to Government to develop study plans for the

Health Protection Account proposed in the Consultation Document

on Healthcare Reform.  To complement the proposed medical saving

scheme, discussions were held during the year with the private insurance

industry to explore the development of new insurance products.

The Authority had made significant progress in developing an internal

resource allocation model to dovetail with the newly implemented

population-based formula for funding public hospital services.  A

proposed model was formulated in the fourth quarter of 2001 to facilitate

discussions on the ways and means of rationalising the distribution of

resources and encouraging hospital clusters to put more emphasis on

the management of service demand and development of preventive or

ambulatory/community care.  Details of the model would be worked

out when more refined specialty costing information was available.

Distribution Network and Infrastructure
Over the past few years, the Authority had taken important steps towards

improving its clinical services distribution network.  The strategies

adopted in 2001/02 focused on supporting Government in the

development of a pluralistic primary care system, accelerating the

development of integrated community-based care, strengthening

collaboration with the private healthcare sector, and promoting disease

prevention and health education.  Throughout the year, strenuous efforts

were made to enhance the Authority's service networks through cluster-

based service rationalisation programmes and designation of specialised

service centres.
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To support the Government's initiative in developing a pluralistic

primary care system in Hong Kong, the Authority took over the

management of five pilot general outpatient clinics from the Department

of Health and converted them into model Family Medicine-based

primary care practice during the year.  These clinics promoted Family

Medicine training through the provision of community-based and

hospital-based programmes for primary care practitioners.

To improve the patient outcome after discharge from hospital and to

prevent frequent readmissions, the Authority implemented a number

of initiatives in 2001/02 to enhance its community-based services.  These

included collaborative delivery of outreach services provided by the

Community Nursing Service and Community Geriatric Assessment

Teams.  There were over 9,100 additional hospital and nursing home

visits to empower community carers in caring for the terminally ill.

Three hospitals also piloted telephone consultation service for discharged

patients and five hospitals developed community allied health services.

During the year, the Authority worked closely with the private healthcare

sector to identify areas of collaboration.  Arrangements were made

through the Hong Kong Medical Association to share the discharge

summary of patients with private practitioners subjest to patient consent,

to provide public hospital patients with information on General

Practitioners, and to develop common referral protocols on selected

disease groups with the private sector.

The Authority continued to collaborate with its community partners in

disease prevention and health promotion, particularly in the organisation

of anti-smoking initiatives, the "Better Health for Better Hong Kong"

Project, and the "Heart at Work" Programme.  A territory-wide health

education programme was launched in September 2001 to promote

the Authority's assessment service for young people with early psychosis.

The programme succeeded in instigating referrals from the community

for assessment and early treatment, and was awarded the International

Association for Business Communicators 2002 Gold Quill Award for

communications excellence.
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To facilitate rationalisation of services, the Authority implemented a

new cluster management structure in the Hong Kong East Cluster on 1

June 2001 and appointed the first Cluster Chief Executive to oversee

the overall planning, development and operations of hospital services

in the pilot cluster.  In charge of a cluster budget, the Cluster Chief

Executive was entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring the cost-

effective use of resources in the cluster to maximise health benefits of

the population.  With support of the Authority Board, the new structure

was later extended to the Kowloon East Cluster and New Territories

East Cluster on 1 October 2001, with the understanding that it would

be rolled out to the remaining clusters in the coming year.

Upon implementation of the new cluster management structure, many

cluster-based programmes had been initiated to rationalise the

Authority's clinical and non-clinical services, e.g., rightsizing the number

of beds in the psychiatric hospitals, consolidating most clinical services

into five collaborative centres or networks, and intra-cluster

rationalisation of services.  Efficiency of the Authority's business support

services was also improved through consolidation, integration and

automation.  Major programmes of the year included enhancement of

materials management and food services, development of in-house

biomedical engineering service, and upgrading of hospital logistics

support.

The Authority's clinical service network was further strengthened by

the designation of more specialised service centres and the enhancement

of information technology/information systems.  Priorities in

information technology development were to accelerate the rollout of

essential clinical systems to all hospitals, delivery of clinical data for the

Electronic Patient Record, system infrastructure strengthening to ensure

future responsiveness and resilience, and to assess the need for new

technologies.  More systems were developed using Internet technology

to support the practice of evidence-based medicine and knowledge

management, and to enhance staff education and communication.
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Quality of Care
In 2001/02, the Authority focused its efforts at enhancing the quality

of patient care on the following areas: improvement in mental health

and pharmacy services, development of evidence-based medical practice,

implementation of the mechanism for safe introduction of new

procedures, clinical audits, and review of the complaint management

system.

During the year, the number of Community Psychiatric Teams was

increased from five to eight to achieve territory-wide coverage.  New

psychiatric drugs were provided to over 2949 suitable patients to improve

their quality of life.  Pharmacy services were enhanced through expanding

functions of the pharmacy information support systems and piloting

the satellite pharmacy, round-the-clock pharmacy and medication

compliance clinics.

Building on the foundations laid and the momentum generated from

past years' development, the Authority continued to promote the practice

of evidence-based medicine among its clinicians through the organisation

of critical appraisal skills workshops, meta-analysis workshops and clinical

guideline development seminars, coupled with an improved access to

its Library Information System, electronic Knowledge Gateway as well

as the Intranet and Internet websites.  To assure the quality of patient

care, clinicians of different disciplines and specialties had developed a

good number of clinical guidelines in 2001/02 based on international

benchmarks, covering a wide range of disease conditions and clinical

services.  A central review mechanism was also set up to vet the

applications for introduction of new medical technologies and

interventions into the Authority to ensure safety and facilitate

coordination.

Commonly accepted as an important tool for assuring the quality of

care, clinical audit was widely conducted by professionals of various

disciplines in the Authority to identify areas for improvement and set

quality standards for clinical services.  In an effort to strengthen its

complaint management function, the Authority's Public Complaints

Committee conducted an overseas visit to Singapore and the United

Kingdom to study their systems of handling patient complaints.  Lessons

learnt from the visit had been converted into improvement

recommendations during the Authority's comprehensive review on its

two-tier complaints management system in the third quarter of 2001.
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Human Resource Capabilities and
Management
To meet the challenges of a changing environment and to support the

new clustering arrangement, strengthening the human resource

capabilities and management continued to be one of the most important

work priorities of the Authority in 2001/02.  As a result of an in-depth

review, the Head Office's human resource management function was

revamped in the year with expertise decentralised to clusters to facilitate

organisation development.

In line with the direction of organisation development approved by the

Authority Board, the senior management structure had been reorganised

to better reflect current needs and strengthen capabilities of the core

management team comprised of the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief

Executives and a number of Directors in the Head Office.  As part of

the executive development plan and taking the opportunities evolved

in the new cluster management structure, job rotations and team building

programmes were implemented for senior executives to enhance

teamwork during the year.

The Authority recruited 303 additional doctors in 2001/02 to relieve

the workload of busy clinical departments, facilitating compensation

for statutory holidays, better management of on-call duties and provision

of rest periods after long hours of work.  A high-level working group

was set up in the Head Office to coordinate and monitor the measures

taken by hospitals to address the long working hour issue of public

doctors.  To alleviate workload of other healthcare professionals, 190

additional nurses, 155 allied health staff and 1,920 care workers were

employed during the year to enhance direct patient care.

To cope with changes in healthcare practices and to optimise utilisation

of human resources, the Authority conducted grade reviews for a number

of staff groups during the year, including the support service staff,

pharmacy staff and nurses.  Manpower indicators were also developed

for the key administrative and support staff groups to facilitate manpower

review and service improvement.
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During the year, the Authority had continued its efforts to enhance

competence of its professional staff through training and emphasis on

core competency.  Core competency based Staff Development Review

was piloted and rolled out to doctors, registered nurses and a number of

allied health staff grades.  In-house training programmes, commissioned

training and overseas sponsorship training were organised throughout

the year to benefit 6,888 doctors, 23,039 nurses, 7783 allied health

professionals and 6908 other administrative/supporting staff.  A web-

based Electronic Learning Centre was developed and commenced

operation in July 2001 to provide staff with convenient access to training

information and interactive training courses.

To enhance hospital and healthcare management capabilities, the

Authority co-organised the International Hospital Congress 2001 with

the International Hospital Federation from 15 to 18 May 2001.

Participated by over 2,000 delegates with about 500 from 44 overseas

countries, the Congress was a great success in promoting the share of

knowledge and experience on healthcare management among local and

overseas healthcare professionals.

Conclusion
Facing unprecedented changes in 2001/02, the Authority had made

significant progress towards improving the accessibility, effectiveness

and efficiency of Hong Kong's public hospital system by focusing its

work on six priority areas.  The achievements were a credit to all the

staff who worked tirelessly in the year and to the Hospital Authority

Board that provided leadership and guidance.  The progress made would

help us forge ahead to meet the future challenges in the healthcare system

in Hong Kong.
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Access and Volume
�� !��"#$%
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• �� !"#$%&$'()$*+,-./
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• �� !"#$%&'()*+ UPKRB�� !

�� 

Faced with the challenges of an ageing population, an imbalanced

service utilisation pattern and increasing resource constraints, the

Hospital Authority implemented a wide range of initiatives in 2001/02

under its six priority areas of work:

• Access and Volume

• Enhanced Productivity Programme

• Financing and Resource Allocation System

• Distribution Network and Infrastructure

• Quality of Care

• Human Resource Capabilities and Management

While awaiting the Government’s healthcare reform to take effect in

improving the imbalanced service utilisation between the public and

private sectors, the Hospital Authority continued to adopt various

measures permissible under existing policies to deal with the access and

volume issue.  To ensure appropriate access to public hospital services,

the Authority strived to increase its service capacity and to manage

volume demand during the year.

Improvement to Service Access
A total of 139 additional acute general beds, 392 rehabilitation/infirmary

beds, four intensive care beds, 34 psychiatric beds and 40 psychiatric

day places were opened in 2001/02 to improve the overall service capacity

of public hospitals.  Service coverage was also expanded at various levels

through eliminating geographical discrepancies in service provision and

extending service hours to cope with the growing service demand.  Major

initiatives implemented in this area included:

• Achieved complete geographic coverage for community psychiatric

service by increasing the number of Community Psychiatric Teams

from five to eight

• Increased coverage of the Community Geriatric Assessment Teams to

licensed private residential care homes to 83.5%

Priority Areas of Work
�� !"#
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• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-.*+/

�� !"#$%
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�� !"
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�� !"#$%&'()*+,(-./0�

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0%1

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&'()*

• Strengthened network arrangement to enhance coverage of

gynaecology services in Tseung Kwan O Hospital and North District

Hospital

• Extended service hours of Magnetic Resonance Imaging service in

Tuen Mun Hospital and haemodialysis service in Alice Ho Miu Ling

Nethersole Hospital to meet the needs of patients in the New

Territories clusters.

• Enhanced the outreach service of Siu Lam Hospital to provide an

additional 363 attendances.

Volume Management
To address the operational issues arising from growing and fluctuating

volume demand, initiatives were implemented to segregate urgent and

non-urgent Accident & Emergency attendance, to formulate

contingency bed management plans for handling seasonal fluctuations,

to increase output of integrated clinics to off-load patients from specialist

outpatient clinics, and to develop inter-specialty referral guidelines to

ensure appropriate use of the specialist outpatient service.  These

initiatives included:

�� !"#$===�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&��'()*+,-.(/&

�� !"#$%&'()*+,&-./012

�� !"#$%&'()*+,"-./012

�� !"#$%&'()�*+,-./01

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012$

�� !"

Modest charges free up
scarce resources===qÜÉ=áããÉåëÉ

éêÉëëìêÉ=çå=éìÄäáÅ=Üçëéáí~ä=ëÉêîáÅÉë=Å~ìëÉÇ=Äó

êáëáåÖ=ÜÉ~äíÜÅ~êÉ=ÇÉã~åÇ=Ü~îÉ=ÄÉÉå=Éñ~ÅÉêÄ~íÉÇ

Äó= íÜÉ= ÑêÉÉ=^ÅÅáÇÉåí= ~åÇ=bãÉêÖÉåÅó= E^CbF

ëÉêîáÅÉë=éêçîáÇÉÇ=Ñçê=~ääI=ïÜ~íÉîÉê=íÜÉáê=ãÉ~åëI

~í=eçåÖ=hçåÖDë=éìÄäáÅ=Üçëéáí~äëI=ïÜáÅÜ=êÉÅÉáîÉ=~

ÜáÖÜ=ê~íÉ=dçîÉêåãÉåí=ëìÄëáÇóK=dáîÉå=íÜ~í=TR=B

çÑ = ^Cb= ~ííÉåÇ~åÅÉë= ~êÉ= åçí= ÉãÉêÖÉåÅáÉëI

^Cb= ÅÜ~êÖÉë= ~êÉ= áåíêçÇìÅÉÇ= íç= ÉÑÑÉÅíáîÉäó

~Çàìëí=íÜÉ=ìíáäáë~íáçå=é~ííÉêå=çÑ=^Cb=ëÉêîáÅÉëK
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• Implemented pilot projects in the Accident & Emergency

Departments of four major acute hospitals to segregate non-urgent

patients from urgent patients for management by the Family Medicine

trainees

• Implemented contingency measures to admit patients with specific

conditions directly from the Accident & Emergency Department to

medical wards, and to prepare more beds for acute medical admissions

during cold winter months

• Expanded output of the integrated clinics by 60% to provide up to

250,000 consultations through the provision of additional clinical

staff and implementation of the Clinical Management System and

Outpatient Appointment System

• Trained 20 community-based physicians and developed inter-specialty

referral guidelines to help manage service volume in the internal

medicine clinics

• �� !"#$%&'#$()*#+,*#

�� !"#$%&'()*'+,-./0

��

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-.,/0

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"

• �� !"#$%& !'()*+,-./

�� !"#$%&'()* SMB �� 

ORMIMMM ��

• �� OM�� !"#$%&'()*+,-

�� !"#$%&'()*

Enhanced Productivity Programme
�� !"#

Under the Enhanced Productivity Programme initiated by the

Government, the Authority’s recurrent funding was subject to a 5%

downward adjustment for three financial years starting 2000/01.  In

2001/02, the Authority’s baseline budget was reduced by 2% because

of this requirement.

��� !"#$%& OMMMLMN�� !"#$

�� !"�#$%&'()*+,-./ RB �

�� ! OMMNLMO�� !"#$%&'()*

� OB �

�� !===�� !
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�� !"#$=I=�� !"�� !"#!$
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To achieve the Enhanced Productivity Programme targets, the Authority

continued to rationalise its clinical services and implement the proactive

“Invest-to-Save” programmes during the year.  Other programmes for

generating productivity savings in 2001/02 included:

• Redeployed existing staff to meet the manpower requirement for

commissioning new beds and day places in Kowloon Hospital, Princess

Margaret Hospital, Tai Po Hospital, Tseung Kwan O Hospital and

United Christian Hospital

• Facilitated implementation of the Government’s voluntary retirement

scheme among the ex-civil servants employed by the Authority to

realise real dollar savings from the productivity programmes of

hospitals

• Converted Lai Chi Kok Hospital into a long stay care home in August

2001 to be operated with funding from the welfare sector, achieving

thereby an annual saving of $89 million with the successful

redeployment of 130 staff to other hospitals

• Continued administrative downsizing in the Head Office and hospital

management, achieving an accumulative reduction of 22% over the

past two years

• Integrated the financial management function in some hospital groups

to improve efficiency, including hospitals in the New Territories South

and New Territories East Clusters

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$%�� !"#!$%&��

OMMNLMO�� !"#$%&'()*+,-
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Rehabilitation services enhanced aìêáåÖ=íÜÉ=óÉ~êI=i~á=`Üá=hçâ=eçëéáí~ä=ï~ë=ÅçåîÉêíÉÇ=áåíç=~=äçåÖ=ëí~ó=Å~êÉ=ÜçãÉ=Ñçê=QMM

êÉëáÇÉåíë=áå=êÉÜ~Äáäáí~íáçå=Ñêçã=ãÉåí~ä=ÇáëÉ~ëÉëK=qÜÉ=åÉï=ÜçãÉI=ïÜáÅÜ=éêçîáÇÉë=ÜáÖÜÉê=ëí~åÇ~êÇë=çÑ=êÉÜ~Äáäáí~íáîÉ=Å~êÉ=íç=íÜÉ=åÉÉÇóI=áë=ã~å~ÖÉÇ=ìåÇÉê=~
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• Completed lighting retrofit in a further nine hospitals for energy

conservation

• Relocated the laundry equipment of Yan Chai Hospital to Tuen Mun

Hospital as replacement for the existing worn-out tunnel washer

• Decommissioned hospital-based laundry in Grantham Hospital and

contracted out its laundry service, achieving an approximate annual

saving of $1 million

• Implemented Linen Cart Exchange and Central Sluicing Systems in

Haven of Hope Hospital

• Outsourced domestic, security, car park control, gardening, laundry

and pest control, in part or in full, in six hospitals, realising an annual

saving of approximately $3 million

• Outsourcing maintenance service for 18 types of low or medium risk

biomedical equipment, achieving $3 million savings per annum

• Engaged a bank to provide a combined payroll and revenue collection

service, resulting in an annual cost saving of $2.2 million as well as a

more efficient treasury operation

• Developed a waiver database of the Comprehensive Social Security

Assistance Scheme to save manpower in manual processing

• Rolled out an automatic dispatching system to Kwong Wah Hospital

and Prince of Wales Hospital to achieve manpower savings through

the automation of intra-hospital pottering and transportation service
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Another priority of work for the Authority in 2001/02 was to address

the healthcare financing issues both externally and internally.  Following

the Government’s publication of a consultation document titled “Lifelong

Investment in Health” in December 2000, the Authority had formulated
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Contribution to sustainable health care
The Government's consultation document Lifelong Investment in Health
recommends reform of Hong Kong's health care system and also proposes
a target subsidy approach in public health care services for the most needy
patients.  The Hospital Authority continues to work closely and regularly
with the Health, Welfare and Food Bureau and contributes to the feasibility
studies and analysis of different options.
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a comprehensive response incorporating the views of key stakeholders to

the Government while supporting it throughout the consultation process.

Meanwhile, efforts were made to develop an internal resource allocation

model to dovetail with the newly implemented population-based formula

for funding public hospital services.

External Initiatives

Externally, the Authority completed the following initiatives during the

year to assist Government in the formulation of reform plans to address

the healthcare financing issues:

• Conducted on behalf of Government a consultancy study on public

hospital fees structure and its impact on service utilisation and

affordability

• Commenced a review on the mechanism for introducing privately

purchased medical items to support the introduction of expensive

and new medical technology

• Reviews the Authority’s private ward charges and made short-term

and long-term recommendations to properly reflect the actual cost of

services provided to private patients admitted to public hospitals

• Provided support to Government in the formulation of study plans

for the Health Protection Account proposed in the Consultation

Document on Healthcare Reform

• Discussed with private insurance companies on the development of

new insurance products to complement the proposed medical saving

scheme

Internal Initiatives

To dovetail with the new population-based funding model, the Authority

had started to develop a population-based internal resource allocation

system to rationalise the distribution of resources, and to encourage

hospitals and clusters to adopt a more strategic view of health and

healthcare, focusing on management of service demand, prevention as

well as ambulatory/community care.  Related initiatives completed in

2001/02 were listed below:

• Formulated a proposed population-based internal resource allocation

model for discussion among senior executives and Hospital Authority

Members while collecting more refined costing information for

developing the necessary details

• Compiled headcount-based specialty costing information of the

previous year for benchmarking purpose to encourage efficient use of

resources in hospital clusters
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• Developed and agreed with Government on a new set of performance

indicators for monitoring the Authority’s work upon implementation

of the population-based funding arrangement

• Formulated strategies for setting up the income budgets of hospitals

and enhancing their non-medical fee income base

• Developed a mechanism to improve the cash flow spending of the

Capital Works Reserve Fund Block Vote for hospital improvement

upon transfer of the budget from the Architectural Services

Department
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Communication for accountability
As an accountable and responsive public organisation, the Hospital
Authority has been actively communicating with the community and
patient groups in the provision of public hospital services through various
channels.  As part of the on-going efforts to solicit community feedback,
HA representatives attend District Council meetings every year to brief
as well as collect views from council members on annual plan service
targets; regular liaison with patient self-help groups is also conducted to
foster mutual understanding.



28

• Developed and agreed with Government on a new set of performance

indicators for monitoring the Authority’s work upon implementation

of the population-based funding arrangement

• Formulated strategies for setting up the income budgets of hospitals

and enhancing their non-medical fee income base

• Developed a mechanism to improve the cash flow spending of the

Capital Works Reserve Fund Block Vote for hospital improvement

upon transfer of the budget from the Architectural Services

Department

Strategic Directions

As part of its ongoing review on and improvement to the organisation

of services, the Authority adopted the following strategic directions in

2001/02 to consolidate and rationalise its distribution network for

clinical service delivery.

Development of a Pluralistic Primary Care System

A number of programmes were implemented to suppor t the

Government’s initiative in developing a pluralistic primary care system

in Hong Kong :
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Communication for accountability
As an accountable and responsive public organisation, the Hospital
Authority has been actively communicating with the community and
patient groups in the provision of public hospital services through various
channels.  As part of the on-going efforts to solicit community feedback,
HA representatives attend District Council meetings every year to brief
as well as collect views from council members on annual plan service
targets; regular liaison with patient self-help groups is also conducted to
foster mutual understanding.
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• Took over the management of five pilot general outpatient clinics

from the Department of Health and converted them into model

Family Medicine-based primary care practice

• Enhanced the information systems of these clinics to facilitate

the practice of Family Medicine and communication of health

information with the hospital specialties

• Strengthened the training programmes for Family Physicians by

recruiting 20 part-time Family Medicine specialists from the private

sector to provide training to the community-based trainees, and by

improving hospi ta l -based Family  Medic ine  t ra ining in

Ophthalmology, Ear, Nose, Throat and Dermatology

• Recruited and trained a total of 106 specialist trainees of various

disciplines (75 in Family Medicine, 21 in Internal Medicine and 10

in Paediatrics) to facilitate the development of a pluralistic primary

care service model

Development of Integrated, Multi-disciplinary
Community-based Care

To improve patient outcome after discharge from hospital and to

prevent frequent readmissions, the Authority implemented the

following measures to strengthen its community-based services:

• Developed a collaborative framework to guide the delivery of outreach

services provided by the Community Nursing Service an Community

Geriatric Assessment Teams

• Strengthened the 11 home care teams to conduct over 9,100 additional

general hospital and nursing home visits to enhance liaison with

healthcare professionals and to empower community carers in caring

for the terminally ill

• Provided medical, nursing and psychiatric services to over 700 frail

elderly at their own homes through the Community Geriatric

Assessment Teams and Psycho-geriatric Teams

• Piloted telephone consultation service for discharged patients in three

hospitals, successfully reducing the unplanned readmission rates of

selected clinical programmes
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Enhanced role of Family Medicine
With the Government general outpatient clinics come under the management
of Hospital Authority, secondary and tertiary care can be better integrated
with the primary one.  As a result, stabilised patients can be referred from the
specialist system to primary care.  Primary care will become now more diverse
and cost-effective, while training opportunities in family medicine are much
enhanced.
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• Piloted hospital-based community allied health service in five hospitals

to enhance pre-discharge preparation and post-discharge support

• Organised enhanced courses and seminars on hospice care, renal

rehabilitation and geriatric care to strengthen community nursing

support to selected clinical specialties

Establishment of Stronger Collaboration with
Other Sectors in the Community

During the year, the Authority worked closely with the private healthcare

sector to identify areas of collaboration.  Progress in this area included:

• Arranged through the Hong Kong Medical Association to share

discharge summary of patients with private practitioners subject to

patient consent, to provide public hospital patients with information

on General Practitioners, and to develop referral protocols on selected

disease groups with the private sector

• Formulated and promulgated a comprehensive action plan for

promoting stronger collaboration between the public and private

healthcare sectors

• Shared with the private sector two protocols on management of eye

diseases through the College of Ophthalmologists of Hong Kong
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Adolescent early
psychosis programme
exceed targets
With addit ional funding from the
Government, the Hospital Authority
opened four Centres in September 2001
to  o f fe r  a  one-s top  serv ice  fo r
adolescents diagnosed with early
psychosis in caring surroundings where
they can receive optimum treatment.
Early psychosis - typically evidenced by
a sense of losing touch with reality - can
develop at any age, but more common
a m o n g  a d o l e s c e n t s .  T h e  n e w
programme has exceeded targets by
helping some 700 people.
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Collaboration in Health Promotion Initiatives

The Authority continued to collaborate with other primary healthcare

providers in disease prevention and health promotion, with focus on

the following in 2001/02:

• Launched a series of anti-smoking activities including smoking

cessation classes to educate inpatients and the public on the harmful

effects of smoking in support of the World No-Smoking Day

• Provided training on smoking cessation counselling to 75 nurses from 34

public hospitals to support the provision of tobacco dependency treatment

• Documented the smoking status of individual patients in the

Authority’s Clinical Management System starting from September

2001 to help identify the smoking population

• Organised a territory-wide multi-disciplinary collaborative health

education programme to promote the Authority’s assessment service

for young people with early psychosis with a view to educating the

public on the symptoms of psychosis, the importance of early

intervention, and the need to avoid stigmatisation on the disease

• Expanded in collaboration with community partners the programmes

and activities of the Authority’s Health InfoWorld, which included
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liaison with patient associations, thematic empowerment workshops

for community carers, and health promotion activities targeted at

different population groups

• Arranged over 60,000 people to visit the Health InfoWorld and

conducted outreach programmes to disseminate health messages to

more than 240,000 people

• Organised the “Better Health for Better Hong Kong” project in

collaboration with Li Ka Shing Foundation. The programme was

supported by Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions and Hong

Kong Confederation of Trade Unions. Health InfoWorld provided

health tests and structured health education programmes to over

6,000 people from the high-risk groups

• Advocated a health conscious lifestyle among the working population

by enrolling about 2,000 employees from 31 companies in the

InfoWorld’s “Heart Health at Work” programme through the Hong

Kong General Chamber of Commerce

• Initiated the “Well Women’s Workshop” project to help over 2,200

women learn more about their health through thematic exhibits,

interactive talks, bone density test and health lunch
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• Introduced a joint sponsorship programme with Rotary Club of

Queensway to provide financial aid for patient groups to foster

self-help and care empowerment

• Employed a “multi-media strategy” to extend the coverage of the

InfoWorld’s health education among the general public, focusing the

theme of its media messages on the three pillars of health, i.e., mental

wellness, regular exercise and balanced diet

• Organised a charity concert for the Hospital Authority Charitable

Foundation at the Cultural Centre in October 2001 to raise funds for

needy patients and to thank the regular donors for their continuing support

• Enhanced the Authority’s well-established network for media

communication with timely and regular dissemination of relevant

information through press releases, arranged interviews, press

conferences/briefings, media lunches, as well as daily handling of press

enquires to sustain the public’s understanding of and support for the

work of public hospitals

• Conducted a series of training workshops for hospital staff with

responsibilities of handling media requests to strengthen the two-

way communication between public hospitals and the media
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Service Network

Strenuous efforts were made in 2001/02 to enhance the Authority’s

service networks through cluster-based service rationalisation

programmes and designation of specialised service centres.

Cluster-based Service Rationalisation Programmes

To facilitate the streamlining and rationalisation of services within a

hospital cluster, the Authority implemented a new cluster management

structure in the Hong Kong East Cluster on 1 June 2001 and appointed

the first Cluster Chief Executive to oversee the overall planning,

development and operations of hospital services in the pilot cluster.  In

charge of a cluster budget, the Cluster Chief Executive was entrusted

with the responsibility of ensuring the cost-effective use of resources in

the cluster to maximise health benefits to the population.  With support

from the Hospital Authority Members and staff, the new cluster

management structure was extended to the Kowloon East Cluster and

New Territories East Cluster on 1 October 2001.  The pace of

development of the clustering concept would be accelerated with the

reorganisation of the existing eight hospital clusters into five mega clusters

over the next two years.

With the introduction of a new cluster management structure, the following

cluster-based service rationalisation programmes were initiated in 2001/02:

• Rationalised the number of community nursing centres in each cluster

based on a set of newly developed criteria
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• Strengthened the networking of chronic pain service between hospitals

of different clusters through the establishment of multidisciplinary

pain management teams in the four referral centres

• Set up cluster-based allied health services on audiology and clinical

psychology in the Hong Kong West Cluster to achieve better service

alignment and pooling of expertise

• Consolidated neuro-surgical service into five collaborative centres to

dovetail with the development of mega clusters

• Established a referral network for neuro-rehabilitation with defined

referral sources

• Developed and implemented a territory-wide service collaboration

plan for prosthetics & orthrotics with comprehensive coverage to all

inpatients and rationalisation of outpatient delivery point in each cluster

• Relocated the ophthalmology day surgery service in Yan Chai Hospital

to Caritas Medical Centre to improve efficiency

• Integrated the microbiology and tuberculosis laboratory services at

Queen Mary Hospital and Grantham Hospital to improve service quality

• Set up telemedicine link between Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospital

and St John Hospital to support the Accident & Emergency service

on Cheung Chau Island

Designation of Specialised Service Centres

During the year, the Authority continued to strengthen its clinical

services network through designation of specialised service centres.

Initiatives in this area included:

• Designated Queen Mary Hospital and Prince of Wales Hospital as

bone marrow transplant centres, Grantham Hospital as the centre for

complex cardiac cases, and Princess Margaret Hospital as the centre

for infectious disease to provide territory-wide coverage for specialised

paediatric services

• Formulated development strategy and service plan for setting up a

Toxicology Reference Laboratory in Princess Margaret Hospital

• Revised the contingency plan for radiation incidents with reference

to hospital networking and rolled out to all clinical staff in the Accident

& Emergency Departments

• Reviewed the organisation and provision of trauma service and

formulated short-term and long-term plans for improvement

• Reviewed isolation facility and tuberculosis bed requirements in 16

hospitals with the designation of Kowloon Hospital and Grantham

Hospital as management centres for multi-drug resistant tuberculosis cases

• Followed up on the Surgical Service Review Report prepared by the

international expert panel and formulated proposed directions for

future development of specialty services under surgery
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Infrastructure
To support its highly complex and sophisticated service distribution

network, the Authority invested a lot in building up the required

infrastructure, focusing mainly on business support services, information

technology/information systems, and capital works.

Business Support Services

Taking advantage of the development of a new cluster management

structure, the Authority implemented a number of cluster-based

initiatives to improve the cost-efficiency of its business support services

through consolidation, integration and automation.  Major programmes

of the year included enhancement of materials management and food

service, development of in-house biomedical engineering service, and

upgrading of hospital logistics.

Supply Chain Management and Food Service

The following initiatives were implemented in 2001/02 to work towards

supply chain management and central food production:

• Developed an enhanced web-based maintenance module of the Asset

Management System and rolled it out to all public hospitals together

with the Materials Management Inventory Control System to reduce

process costs and inventories

• Piloted electronic purchase requisition in Tuen Mun Hospital and

United Christian Hospital to streamline the internal ordering process

• Completed a project study on the technical feasibility and financial

viability of establishing a Central Food Production Unit for supplying

quality food products to inpatients, with strategies for developing the

Unit formulated and endorsed by the Authority Board

Biomedical Engineering Services

To improve risk management and quality standards of its biomedical

equipment, the Authority developed new contractual relationships with

the Electrical & Mechanical Services Trading Fund and established an in-

house biomedical engineering team to take over part of the services

previously provided by the Electrical & Mechanical Services Department.

Since its inception, the in-house biomedical engineering team had put

into place an equipment safety hazard alert system, standardised

specification for 56 types of equipment, and completed a quality assurance

check for high risk equipment items in the ex-subvented hospitals.
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Hospital Logistics

In support of the delivery of clinical services, the following programmes

were implemented to improve hospital logistics:

• Conducted studies on the technological options for future

development of telecommunication and paging systems of public

hospitals to develop service improvement plans

• Enhanced the Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service by

acquiring two additional vehicles and replacing five vehicles

• Introduced an elderly patient transport service in all clusters to facilitate

easy access of outpatient services by frail elderly people

• Implemented a special two-year minor works programme with 83

projects initiated to enhance the repairs and maintenance of hospitals

• Provided 160 fume hoods to ensure chemical safety for staff working

in high risk places, and procured 400 adjustable hospital beds to

enhance safety of patients and staff
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Information Technology/Information Systems

Clinical Systems

Work priorities of the year were to accelerate the rollout of essential

clinical systems in support of the collection and delivery of clinical data

for the Electronic Patient Record, to review the architecture of these

systems for ensuring future responsiveness and resilience, and to assess

the need for new information technologies.  Major initiatives included:

• Developed, implemented and upgraded the required corporate

information systems and equipment in five hospital extension blocks

• Rolled out the Clinical Management System (Inpatient) to all the

remaining 17 non-acute hospitals

• Implemented the Clinical Management System (Outpatient) in the

remaining specialty units of five major acute hospitals

• Installed the integrated version of the Psychiatric Clinical Information

System and Clinical Management System in the psychiatric units of

12 hospitals

• Extended the Outpatient Appointment System to all the allied health

departments to facilitate the booking and scheduling of patient

appointments

• Implemented the Laboratory Information and Radiology Information

Systems in Ruttonjee Hospital and Yan Chai Hospital to improve the

provision of timely laboratory results and radiological reports to

clinicians

• Expanded functionality of the Clinical Management System to

enhance the documentation and communication of patient outcomes,

the streamlining of various clinical processes, the evaluation of clinical

care, as well as the provision of decision support to clinicians on drug

prescribing

Non-Clinical Systems

The development of non-clinical systems focused on the use of

information and Internet technology to support the practice of evidence-

based medicine and knowledge management, to facilitate the education

of healthcare professionals and patients, as well as to enhance

communication internally among clinicians and externally with private

practitioners.  Information systems were also developed to improve

hospital supporting services.  For instance, a dietetic and catering

management system was implemented in six hospitals to facilitate

therapeutic diet management, streamline catering service operations,

and develop an inter-hospital patient diet information exchange.
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Infrastructure Systems

To ensure the operational efficiency of its information systems, the

Authority has strived to enhance the capabilities of its information

technology infrastructure on an ongoing basis.  In 2001/02, the following

initiatives were successfully implemented to improve the quality and

performance of the information technology services:

• Completed the implementation of system tools to automate the

management of workstations installed at hospitals in relation to

software distribution, problem resolution and inventory management

• Established the network infrastructure for redevelopment projects in

Castle Peak Hospital, Kowloon Hospital, Ruttonjee Hospital and

United Christian Hospital

• Piloted the use of Electronic Data Interchange Engine for electronic

procurement in the Head Office and interface with the Hong Kong

Patient Master Index in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital and

Tuen Mun Hospital

• Replaced the obsolete Mainframe and Unix storage disks with advanced

disk storage servers to achieve better performance at reduced unit costs

• Upgraded the network infrastructure in two acute hospitals and ten

non-acute hospitals according to the Authority’s planned strategy for

2001-2003
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Achieving cost effectiveness
Facing with challenges from new medical technologies and resource limitations, the Hospital
Authority has been putting extra efforts to enhance cost-effectiveness in service provision.  To
ensure service quality and standards, clinical audits are conducted and clinical protocols
formulated.  In line with new clustering management, highly complex medical services with low
utilisation, which require specialised expertise and sophisticated equipment, will in future be
concentrated in designated centres to ensure efficient and effective service delivery.
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• Enhanced the availability and resilience of mission-critical clinical

systems in the mid-range (UNIX) computing environment

• Set up the Information Technology Call Centre to provide integrated

problem management, advanced technology for call routing and caller

identification, as well as problem detection and remote monitoring

• Piloted the introduction of mobile computing for selected inpatient

clinical functions and for remote access in the provision of community-

based nursing services to improve communication

• Provided assistance to Health & Welfare Bureau in conducting the Project

Definition Study for Hong Kong’s Health Information Infrastructure

Capital Works

To meet the increasing healthcare needs arising from an ageing and

growing population, the Authority continued to plan and construct

new facilities and redevelop existing facilities in its hospitals, taking

into account the latest development trends in modern healthcare delivery.

In 2001/02, the following capital works projects had been implemented:

• Completed the remodelling of Tsan Yuk Hospital into an ambulatory

care centre after relocation of its inpatient obstetrics and neonatal

services to Queen Mary Hospital in November 2001

• Completed the construction of a Trauma & Emergency Centre at the

Accident & Emergency Department of Prince of Wales Hospital in

March 2002

• Refurbished the facilities of MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

• Implemented redevelopment plans to improve the facilities in Caritas

Medical Centre, Castle Peak Hospital and Kowloon Hospital

Major programmes to enhance the systems and tools necessary for

delivery of quality care in 2001/02 included improvements in mental

health and pharmacy services, development of evidence-based medical

practice, implementation of the mechanism for safe introduction of

new procedures, clinical audits, and review of the complaints

management system.
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• Enhanced the availability and resilience of mission-critical clinical

systems in the mid-range (UNIX) computing environment

• Set up the Information Technology Call Centre to provide integrated

problem management, advanced technology for call routing and caller

identification, as well as problem detection and remote monitoring

• Piloted the introduction of mobile computing for selected inpatient

clinical functions and for remote access in the provision of community-

based nursing services to improve communication

• Provided assistance to Health & Welfare Bureau in conducting the Project

Definition Study for Hong Kong’s Health Information Infrastructure

Capital Works

To meet the increasing healthcare needs arising from an ageing and

growing population, the Authority continued to plan and construct

new facilities and redevelop existing facilities in its hospitals, taking

into account the latest development trends in modern healthcare delivery.

In 2001/02, the following capital works projects had been implemented:

• Completed the remodelling of Tsan Yuk Hospital into an ambulatory

care centre after relocation of its inpatient obstetrics and neonatal

services to Queen Mary Hospital in November 2001

• Completed the construction of a Trauma & Emergency Centre at the

Accident & Emergency Department of Prince of Wales Hospital in

March 2002

• Refurbished the facilities of MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

• Implemented redevelopment plans to improve the facilities in Caritas

Medical Centre, Castle Peak Hospital and Kowloon Hospital

Major programmes to enhance the systems and tools necessary for

delivery of quality care in 2001/02 included improvements in mental

health and pharmacy services, development of evidence-based medical

practice, implementation of the mechanism for safe introduction of

new procedures, clinical audits, and review of the complaints

management system.
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Improvements in Mental Health and
Pharmacy Services

In recognition of the significant morbidity and even mortality associated

with mental health problems in the community, the Authority had

accorded priority over the development of its mental health services

with implementation of the following initiatives in 2001/02:

• Increased the number of Community Psychiatric Teams from five

to eight to achieve territory-wide coverage

• Provided new psychiatric drugs to 2949 suitable patients to

improve their quality of life

• Developed and administered a new model for early detection of

problems to 1727 young people with mental illness, of whom

674 had subsequently received timely treatment.

Emphasis this year was also put on enhancing effectiveness of the care

process through rolling out the following improvements to the

Authority’s pharmacy services:

• Expanded functions of the pharmacy systems to support automated

dispensing and rollout of the Clinical Management System to hospitals

• Revamped the drug database to support the provision of drug

prescribing decision support to clinicians

• Established satellite pharmacy service in two acute hospitals and round-

the-clock pharmacy service in three acute hospitals to ensure drug

safety for inpatients

• Set up medication compliance clinics in four specialist outpatient

clinics to improve drug compliance of patients and to increase

their drug knowledge

Evidence-based Medical Practice

Building on the foundations laid and the momentum generated from

past years’ development, the Authority continued to promote the practice

of evidence-based medicine among its frontline clinicians. Major

initiatives introduced during the year included:

• Organised seven specialty-based critical appraisal skills workshops,

two meta-analysis workshops and two clinical guideline development

symposia to equip clinicians with the necessary knowledge and skills

for using best evidence in clinical decision making

• Coordinated a multi-centred clinical trial to assess effectiveness of

Low Molecular Weight Heparin in local Chinese Stroke patients
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• Developed and promulgated clinical guidelines on a wide range of

disease conditions or clinical services, including leukemia, diabetic

mellitus, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, acute epiglottitis,

upper gastrointestinal bleeding, point-of-care pathology

testing, infirmary service, fall prevention, bed sore management,

radiosurgery treatment for common brain tumors, oncology for

osteosarcoma and lymphoma, specialty nursing service in continence,

rehabilitation, orthopaedic & traumatology and Accident &

Emergency, management of viral croup and Kawasaki Disease,

management of sexual assault victims, and pharmaceutical service

delivery

• Improved knowledge management by implementing the electronic

Knowledge Gateway for eight clinical specialties, upgrading its

hardware and data infrastructure and extending electronic journal

access to all hospitals

• Installed additional workstations, data ports together with the

peripheral equipment and necessary software in hospital wards to

facilitate access to the Authority’s Library Information System,

electronic mail function, as well as the Intranet and Internet websites

• Developed a web application on the toxicology of Traditional Chinese

Medicine to provide clinicians with a handy electronic database on

the drug data of some common poisonous Chinese Medicine

• Conducted project definition studies for the Trauma Registry System,

the Blood Transfusion Networking System, interface of Community-

based Nursing Service with the Clinical Management System, the

Operating Theatre Management System, and the Antibiotic Resistance

Surveillance System
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Mechanism for Safe Introduction of
New Procedures

To ensure the introduction of emerging medical technologies and

interventions in a safe and coordinated manner, the Authority

implemented a corporate mechanism for safe introduction of new

procedures into its clinical service system commencing February 2001.

A central review mechanism was set up to vet the new procedure

applications with participation of the Clinical Coordinating Committees

and a central register of the new procedures was established for reference

of clinicians.

Clinical Audits

As an important tool for assuring the quality of patient care, clinical

audit was widely conducted by professionals of various disciplines in

the Authority.  During the year, clinical audit programmes were

performed on the following subjects to identify areas for improvement:

• the utilisation of general-purpose ultrasound in non-radiology

departments in 13 acute hospitals;

• the availability of diagnostic and staging information in breast cancer

patients referred for adjuvant treatment;

• the radiation shielding, patient communication and report turnaround

time in radiology;

• the outcome of chest pain management;

• the Community Nursing Service and Community Psychiatric Nursing Service;

• restraint of patient, naso-gastric tube feeding and wound dressing; and

• compliance to guidelines in prosthetics & othotics, dietetics, and

diagnostic radiology.
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Stronger evidence - better decisions
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Complaint Management System

In an effort to strengthen its complaints management function, the

Authority’s Public Complaints Committee conducted an overseas visit

to Singapore and the United Kingdom to study their systems of handling

patient complaints.  Observations during the visit had been converted

into recommendations for improving the Authority’s two-tier complaints

management system.  In response to Government’s proposal to improve

the existing patient complaint mechanisms in the Consultation

Document on Healthcare Reform, the Authority completed a

comprehensive review on its internal system of handling patient

complaints and implemented a number of concrete improvement

proposals, including designating Complaint Managers to provide timely

handling of complaints at the hospital level, improving reporting and

monitoring of complaints, and expanding membership of the Public

Complaints Committee.
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Other Improvement Initiatives

Other initiatives implemented during the year to improve the quality

of care included:

• Launched the universal antenatal HIV/AIDS screening programme

and provided treatment to patients identified to be HIV-positive

• Introduced nucleic acid testing for the donated blood

• Reviewed and established engineering design standards for isolation

and infection control facilities

• Enhanced timely communication and knowledge acquisition on

infection control by providing information technology support to

Infection Control Officers in the acute hospitals

• Piloted a framework for benchmarking the quality of X-Ray films

To meet the challenges of a changing environment and to support the

new clustering arrangement, strengthening the human resource

capabilities and management continued to be one of the work priorities

of the Authority in 2001/02.  In this regard, a review was conducted on

the human resource management function of the Authority with a view

to identifying its strengths and weaknesses as well as enhancing its role

as strategic partner to line managers.  As a result of the review, the Head

Office’s human resource function was reorganised with expertise

decentralised to clusters to facilitate organisation development.
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Direct dialogue keeps
communication channels open
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Senior Management Structure and
Executive Development

In line with the direction of organisation development approved by the

Authority Board, the senior management structure of the Authority

had been reorganised.  Under the new structure, organisation capabilities

of the Authority’s core management team, comprised of the Chief

Executive, the Cluster Chief Executives and a number of Directors in

the Head Office, was strengthened to better reflect current needs.  As

part of the executive development plan and taking the opportunities

evolved in the new cluster management structure, job rotations for some

senior executives and Hospital Chief Executives were implemented and

a number of team building programmes were organised for 36 senior

executives during the year.
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Grade Review

To cope with changes in healthcare practices and to optimise utilisation

of human resources, the Authority conducted ongoing reviews on the

grade structures of its various types of staff.  A new grade structure was

implemented in November 2001 for support service staff to enhance

the delivery of general support services.   Grade reviews were also

performed for pharmacy and nursing services to support the development

of new patient care delivery model.  Recommendations of the grade

reviews were being rolled out in phases.

Workload of Frontline Staff
In 2001/02, the Authority recruited 303 additional doctors to relieve

the workload of busy departments, facilitating compensation for

statutory holidays, better arrangement of on-call duties and provision

of rest periods after long hours of work.  A high-level working group

was set up in the Head Office to coordinate and monitor the measures

taken by hospitals to address the long working hour issue of public

doctors.  Ongoing efforts were made to enhance communication between

frontline supervisors and doctors to reach mutually agreed arrangements

on the provision of rest days.

�� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./!01

�� !"#$%&' OMMN � NN�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&'(�� !"#$%&'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� 

�� !"#$%

�� ! OMMNLMO�� !" PMP�� !"#$

�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&'(&)

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./"#0

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$�%&'()*+,-./01

�� !"#$%&'()*!+,��� !

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#�� !"

�� !"#$%= =�� !"

�� !"#$%&'()&��*+,-./0

�� !"#$ %&'()*+,-./012

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012'

�� !"#$%&'()*+,&-./012

�� !"#$%&'( )*+,-.

Rising to the challenge
qÜÉ=ÇÉã~åÇ=Ñçê=éìÄäáÅ=ÜÉ~äíÜ=Å~êÉ=ëÉêîáÅÉë=áë=ÉîÉê

áåÅêÉ~ëáåÖ=~åÇ=íÜÉ=åÉïÉëí=ãÉÇáÅ~ä=íÉÅÜåçäçÖáÉë

~åÇ=éêçÅÉÇìêÉë=~êÉ=çÑíÉå=ìåÇÉåá~Ääó=ÉñéÉåëáîÉK

qÜÉ=ÄìÇÖÉí~êó=ëáíì~íáçåI=ÜçïÉîÉêI=áë=ÄÉÅçãáåÖ

ãçêÉ=ëíêáåÖÉåíK==aÉëéáíÉ=íÜÉ=Éñíê~=ëíê~áå=íÜ~í=ëìÅÜ

ëíêáåÖÉåÅó=éä~ÅÉë=çå=íÜÉ=eçëéáí~ä=^ìíÜçêáíóDë

ÑêçåíäáåÉ=íÉ~ãëI=íÜÉáê=ÇÉÇáÅ~íáçåI=ÅçãéÉíÉåÅÉ=~åÇ

éêçÑÉëëáçå~äáëã= êÉã~áå=ìåÇáããÉÇ=~åÇ= íÜÉáê

ÅìäíìêÉ=çÑ =ëÉêîáÅÉ=íç=é~íáÉåíë=ÅçåíáåìÉë=íç=ÄÉ

ÉñÉãéä~êóK



48

To alleviate workload of other healthcare professionals, 190 additional

nurses and 155 allied health staff were employed during the year.  Some

1,920 care workers were also recruited to enhance direct patient care in

support of the Government’s Initiatives for Wider Economic

Participation Programme.  These workers provided support at hospital

wards, clinical departments, clinics and other departments under

pressure.  They also provided assistance to healthcare professionals in

the delivery of community services and outreach support for discharged

mental patients.

Management of People Resources
To steer the development of manpower indicators, a corporate-wide

survey was conducted to collect relevant manpower and service level

data for the key administrative and support services, including Human

Resources Service, Food Service, Domestic/Hotel Service, Patient

Records & Information Management, and Patient/ Community/Media

Relations.  With the assistance of all General Managers (Administrative

Services) and on the basis of the survey findings, manpower indicators

for these administrative and support staff groups were developed to

provide hospital management with some useful planning information

for manpower review and service improvement.

To ensure optimal utilisation of human resources, existing staff were re-

deployed to support the opening of new beds and services.  A total of

779 staff proceeded on early retirement in 2001/02 under the

Government’s Voluntary Retirement Scheme, resulting in substantial

productivity savings.
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Enhancement of Professional Competence
During the year, focus was put on applying the core competency sets in

the Staff Development Review process.  Core competency based Staff

Development Review was piloted and rolled out to a number of staff

grades, including doctors, registered nurses, medical social workers,

medical technologists/laboratory technicians, radiographers, and

prosthetist-orthotists.

In-house training programmes, commissioned training and overseas

sponsorship training were organised throughout the year to enhance

competencies of clinical, administrative and supporting staff in support

of services directions.  A total of 6,888 doctors, 23,039 nurses, 7,783

allied health professionals and 6,908 other administrative/supporting

staff attended these programmes.
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To enhance hospital and healthcare management capabilities, the

Authority co-organised the International Hospital Congress 2001 with

the International Hospital Federation from 15 to 18 May 2001 at the

Hong Kong Convention & Exhibition Centre.  Participated by over

2,000 delegates with about 500 from 44 overseas countries, the Congress

was a great success in promoting the share of knowledge and experience

on healthcare management among local and overseas healthcare

professionals.

Eight workshops/seminars on clinical ethics and care for the terminally

ill were organised for frontline healthcare professionals to develop their

competence and expertise in handling clinical ethical issues.  In

connection with this, a group of seven Authority members and staff

were sponsored to attend a five-day structured course on medical ethics

in the United Kingdom.  To implement the Medical Council’s revised

professional code and conduct on care of the terminally ill, a set of

guidelines was developed and promulgated to staff of the Authority and

related professional associations, academic organisations and patient

support groups.
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Electronic Learning Centre
To leverage on today’s web based technology, an Electronic Learning

Centre was developed and commenced operation in July 2001 through

the Hospital Authority Intranet and Internet.  This new platform

provided staff with a timely and convenient access to training

information and interactive training courses that could be taken at their

own pace and location.  Since its inception, the Centre’s list of e-learning

courses continued to grow, incorporating a good number of subscribed

management and computer skills courses as well as the in-house

developed professional/clinical courses.  With the organisation of a series

of road-shows and demonstrations, the number of registered users of

the Centre increased rapidly to exceed 15,000 by end of the fiscal year.

Staff Health and Wellness
To maintain a healthy workforce and to build a caring and positive

work environment in the Authority, a team of Staff Health Ambassadors

were appointed during the year to help launch a series of thematic

programmes focusing on “Mental Health & Stress Coping”, “Happy

Family & Happy Work” and “Healthy Lifestyle”.  Through hospital

visits, follow-up on injury-on-duty cases, establishment of staff health

resources corners and the Staff Health Letter Box, both the commitment

of line managers and staff members to promote a quality work life in

the Authority was greatly enhanced.

Staff Communication and Relations
To support implementation of the new cluster management structure

in the pilot clusters, communication strategy and action plans were

formulated and implemented to keep staff abreast of the latest

developments and to involve them in the change process.  Open forums,

letters to staff, cluster newsletters, designated cluster websites and cluster

conferences were organised to align common objectives, directions and

the way forward among key stakeholders.

In addition, a number of sharing sessions and two large-scale seminars

on internal communication strategies and practices were conducted in

the year to identify ways and means of enhancing communication and

collaboration.
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Highlights of initiatives in
Hospital Clusters
Major initiatives undertaken by Hospital Clusters for Service Improvement
during 2001/2002

Hong Kong East Cluster
• Established new cluster management structure in June 2001

• Formed 11 clinical and three allied health integrated teams in the cluster
to manage services

• Reengineered service delivery models and implemented more flexible
manpower deployment in the cluster

• Enhanced accessibility of hospital facilities and equipment to patients
in the cluster

• Set up a Cluster Quality & Risk Management Committee to drive changes
in high risk areas

• Developed multi-disciplinary care plan extending from acute to
convalescent care to shorten length of stay

• Implemented a structured triage system for common medical conditions to
manage access

• Established inter-hospital transfer guidelines and quota to reduce waiting time

• Streamlined and standardised clinical protocols

• Enhanced community outreach services to reduce over 20% unplanned
readmissions and 18% Accident & Emergency attendances of geriatric
patients

• Organised outreach clinics and block booking of appointments for infirmary
patients

• Provided multi-disciplinary neuro-rehabilitation

• Implemented outreach community rehabilitation programmes and services
through mobile clinics for high-risk and frail patients

• Extended the Diabetes Mellitus Shared Care Programme to private
practitioners

• Implemented Breast Imaging Partnership Programme with privately
operated centres and breast surgeons

• Trained community carers and volunteers as health partners of the cluster

• Increased day and ambulatory services to minimise in-patient needs

• Enhanced efficiency and output of Opthalmology services through day
surgery and triage clinic

• Reorganised pathology laboratories to achieve economy of scale and to
provide core emergency laboratory service at community hospitals

• Extended cook-chill catering service to all cluster hospitals

• Reduced the over usage of the Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer
Service by 5%

• Implemented Laboratory Information System and Radiology Information
System for efficient transfer and retrieval of information

• Promoted occupational health and safety in hospitals and provided
relevant training to staff

• Shared staff welfare facilities and organised joint training programmes for
staff across the cluster

• Established tele-medicine link between Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin
Hospitals and St John Hospital

• Formulated a disaster contingency plan for Cheung Chau

• Develop St. John Hospital as an accredited Family Medicine Training Centre

• Attained ISO accreditation for Clinical Oncology services
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Hong Kong West Cluster

• Relocated Tsan Yuk Hospital’s inpatient obstetrics and neonatal services
to Queen Mary Hospital and remodelled the hospital into an ambulatory
care centre to provide one-stop outpatient and community services for
women and the elderly

• Took over the management and operation of Sai Ying Pun General
Outpatient Clinic from the Department of Health

• Integrated rehabilitation services at Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital,
Fung Yiu King Hospital, MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre and
Tung Wah Hospital to improve service quality and efficiency through
sharing of medical expertise across hospitals

• Piloted a patient transport service to help frail elderly patients receive
outpatient service in cluster hospitals and clinics

• Integrated the microbiology and tuberculosis laboratory services of Queen
Mary Hospital and Grantham Hospital to improve service quality and
achieve manpower savings

• Established cluster-based clinical psychology and audiology services to
improve service quality and efficiency through better service alignment
and pooling of expertise

• Integrated prosthetic and orthotic services of the cluster by setting up a
prosthetic centre at MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre and three
satellite clinics at Tung Wah Hospital, Queen Mary Hospital, Duchess
of Kent Children’s Hospital and David Trench Rehabilitation Centre

• Piloted a community speech therapy project to identify the need for and
evaluate the outcome / benefit of out-reach speech therapy service to
residents of old age homes with neurological dysphasia

• Established direct transfer arrangement for heart failure patients from
the Accident & Emergency Department of Queen Mary Hospital to the
cardiac unit of Grantham Hospital to streamline transfer procedures and
improve efficiency of care

• Enhanced the family medicine training programme by expanding
service capacity of the integrated clinic at Tsan Yuk Hospital

• Completed installation of the Picture Archiving Communication
System in Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital, creating a total filmless
operation environment in the hospital
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Kowloon East Cluster

• Opened 91 additional acute beds in United Christian Hospital

• Opened four additional intensive care beds and 48 additional acute beds
in Tseung Kwan O Hospital

• Opened 40 additional psychiatric day hospital places in United
Christian Hospital

• Commenced community psychiatric service in United Christian Hospital

• Extended community geriatric outreach service to more private old age
homes in the Tseung Kwan O and SaiKung Region

• Installed the Clinical Management System in Haven of Hope Hospital

• Commenced Magnetic Resonance Imaging Service in United Christian
Hospital

• Implemented protocols for ten common conditions in infirmary service
in Haven of Hope Hospital

• Took over the management and operation of Tseung Kwan O Jockey
Club Clinic from the Department of Health

• Commenced a three-bed Paediatric High Dependency Unit in United
Christian Hospital

• Implemented energy conservation initiatives in United Christian Hospital
and Haven of Hope Hospital

• Implemented central registration and central workshop at the Integrated
Rehabilitation Services Department in Tseung Kwan O Hospital

• Established new cluster management structure in October 2001

• Appointed cluster coordinators for all major clinical and non-clinical
services

• Commenced operation of the cluster procurement centre as from
December 2001 onwards

• Formulated strategic directions for the Kowloon East Cluster

• Integrated the Obstetric & Gynaecology Departments of United
Christian Hospital and Tseung Kwan O Hospital, and the Radiology
Departments of Tseung Kwan O Hospital and Haven of Hope Hospital
under the single team concept
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Kowloon Central Cluster

• Opened a number of specialty wards in Queen Elizabeth Hospital including
Isolation Ward, Adolescent Ward, Paediatric Oncology Ward and Special
Observation Ward to cater for different needs of patients

• Opened a Cardiac Diagnostic & Interventional Centre in Queen Elizabeth
Hospital to provide comprehensive cardiac services

• Reviewed the overall hospital risk management and clinical audit structure
of Queen Elizabeth Hospital to ensure high quality of patient care

• Obtained the ISO 17025 accreditation for the Anatomical Pathology &
Medical Microbiology Laboratories of Queen Elizabeth Hospital

• Opened 136 inpatient beds in Kowloon Hospital to enhance rehabilitation
and infirmary care for patients transferred from United Christian Hospital

• Coordinated planning of the Kowloon Hospital Phase I Redevelopment
Project

• Enhanced community psychiatric services for the Wong Tai Sin and Kowloon
City Region

• Strengthened the work of Community Geriatric Assessment Teams and
Community Nursing Service by paying more visits to nursing homes and
providing training to community carers

• Set up visual rehabilitation service for patients with visual field loss in Hong
Kong Eye Hospital

• Set up Family Medicine Clinic in Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital to provide
community-based training to Family Medicine trainees

• Rolled out the Clinical Management System to clinics and wards of Kowloon
Hospital, Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital and Hong Kong Eye Hospital

• Relocated ophthalmology outpatient service from Hong Kong Buddhist
Hospital to Hong Kong Eye Hospital commencing July 2001 to improve
service quality

• Completed renovation works for the A4 Ward of Hong Kong Buddhist
Hospital

• Collected a total of 193,830 blood units and supplied 406,853 units of
processed blood components and plasma products to public and private
hospitals

• Obtained the “Good People Management Award” organised by the Labour
Department for Hong Kong Eye Hospital
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Kowloon West Cluster
(including New Territories South)

• Completed the clinical audits of patient fall and bed sore with
implementation of cluster-based improvement measures

• Enhanced intra-cluster collaborations in the provision of Community
Geriatric Assessment Service and Community Nursing Service to increase
service capacity and coverage to private old aged homes

• Formulated cluster-based clinical protocols in stroke and stroke
rehabilitation to provide better coordinated care to patients

• Integrated the governance and management of  Kwong Wah Hospital and
Wong Tai Sin Hospital commencing 1 April 2001

• Integrated human resources management, finance management, facilities
management, and procurement & supplies functions between Kwong Wah
Hospital, Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital and Wong Tai Sin Hospital

• Provided health education and training to patients and carers to enhance
their self-care skills on management of chronic diseases and minor ailments

• Strengthened service provision to the terminally ill and their family
members by opening a family room for hospice patients in Our Lady of
Maryknoll Hospital

• Organised health promotion activities like health talks and health checks
in collaboration with the District Councils and other community
organisations

• Organised continued education and training programmes for private
practitioners

• Commissioned 256 new extended care beds in the Princess M a r g a re t
Hospital Lai King Building

• Integrated pathology services of Princess Margaret Hospital and Yan Chai
Hospital to improve service quality and efficiency

• Established a Community Health Resource Centre in Princess Margaret
Hospital to promote health education and disease prevention and to
support carers in the community

• Established the Golden Art Gallery in the Princess Margaret Hospital
Lai King Building to promote art and humanities for the benefit of
patients

• Enhanced cluster-based pharmacy service by setting up refill and
compliance clinic, satellite clinic and 24-hour pharmacy service in
Princess Margaret Hospital, and bed side discharge medication counselling
service in Yan Chai Hospital

• Reengineered and integrated obstetrics & gynaecology services in the
New Territories South Region

• Established a memory clinic in Caritas Medical Centre to provide
multidisciplinary care for elderly patients with dementia through
collaboration with the psychiatric teams of Kwai Chung Hospital

• Established a resuscitation training centre in Caritas Medical Centre to
coordinate staff training on resuscitation skills and to promote first aid
and resuscitation response in the community

• Strengthened the development of Family Medicine by taking over the
management of Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club Clinic from the
Department of Health commencing November 2001

• Participated in the “Healthy City” initiatives coordinated by the Kwai
Ching, Tsuen Wan and Shum Shui Po District Councils to promote health
and a healthy environment in the community
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• Launched the “Healing the Heart, Healing the Mind” Project in Kwai
Chung Hospital to enhance community awareness of psychiatric
diseases and to reduce stigmatisation of patients with mental illness

• Converted Lai Chi Kok Hospital into a long stay care home with 400
places for stable patients with chronic mental illness

• Commenced day service for substance abuse patients in Kwai Chung
Hospital

• Launched the “Early Assessment Services for Young People with Early
Psychosis” Programme in Kwai Chung Hospital in collaboration with
local welfare agencies to facilitate early detection and treatment of
mental illnesses among the adolescents

• Provided additional liaison consultation sessions in Kwai Chung
Hospital to enhance the coverage of psychiatric service to other cluster
hospitals
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New Territories East Cluster

• Established new cluster management structure in October 2001

• Integrated and repositioned medical and allied health services on
cluster basis with one team for each service / function across hospitals

• Integrated administrative services on cluster basis including financial
management, supply chain management, human resources and facility
management to achieve savings and better service quality

• Set up an information technology framework within the cluster to
facilitate dissemination of knowledge and staff communication

• Implemented various information systems to enhance efficiency and
cost-effectiveness, including the Laboratory Request System, Automatic
Despatch System, Outpatient Appointment System, and Dietetic &
Catering Management System

• Developed family medicine in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital,
North District Hospital and Prince of Wales Hospital

• Commissioned new services in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital,
including the mammography service, sleep study laboratory, a piloted
mid-wife led birth centre and a child & adolescent mental health centre

• Commissioned new services in North District Hospital, including the
Community Psychiatric Service, Community Geriatric Assessment
Service, Diabetes Mellitus Foot Clinic, Stoma Clinic, Incontinence Clinic
and outpatient clinics in the specialties of gynaecology, neurosurgery,
thoracic surgery and paediatric surgery

• Strengthened rehabilitation support to acute hospitals in the cluster by
opening a spinal cord injury rehabili-tation centre, a orthopaedic
rehabilitation unit and a psychiatric rehabilitation garden in Tai Po
Hospital

• Strengthened psychiatric services by opening 34 new acute psychiatric
beds, enhancing community psychiatric and psycho-geriatric services,
implementing an early assessment service for young people with psychosis,
and introducing new anti-psychotic drug therapy as well as psychiatric
out-patient occupational therapy service

• Improved pharmacy services through automation of the outpatient
dispensing service and setting up of drug compliance clinics

• Enhanced service quality in Prince of Wales Hospital by opening the Trauma
and Emergency Centre, establishing a central phlebotomist team, and
implementing risk management initiatives

• Enhanced hospice service by strengthening the outreach home care teams
and developing a home-based hospice care service in Bradbury Hospice

• Promoted interface between the public and private healthcare sectors in the
New Territories East Region through development of referral guidelines
and sharing of clinical information

�� !"#$

•� OMMN � NM�� !"#$%&'(

• �� !"#$%&'%( )*%+,-./
�� !"#$%&'()*��

• �� !"#$%&'()%*+,-./01
�� !"#$%��� !"#$%&'

• �� !"#$%&'()*"+,-./012

• �� !"#$%&'(")*&+,-./0
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0��
��

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,()-./0
�� !"#$% &

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012
�� !"#$%&'(#)*+,-./01
�� !"#$"%&'()*+��

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./&'0
�� !"#$%&'()*+&,-./&
�� !"#$%&'()&'*+)&$,&
�� !"#

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./'(0
�� !�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.

• �� !"#$%&'() PQ�� !"#$%&
�� !"#$%&'"#$()*+,-./
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0)*
�� !"#$%&

• �� !"#$%&'() *+,-����
�� !"#�� 

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012
�� !"#!$�� !"#�� !"#$
�� !"#

• �� !"#$%&'()*+%,-./01
�� !"#

• �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012
�� !"#



61

New Territories West Cluster

• Opened the Tuen Mun Hospital Ambulatory Care Centre

• Extended service hours of the Magnetic Resonance Imaging and pharmacy
services in Tuen Mun Hospital

• Extended the hospice home care service of Tuen Mun Hospital to cover
public holidays

• Commissioned day minor surgery service in the Ambulatory Care Centre
of  Tuen Mun Hospital

• Integrated the management of Siu Lam Hospital and Castle Peak Hospital

• Implemented the Early Intervention Programme for young people with
mental illness in Castle Peak Hospital

• Commissioned services in the new Blocks D and F of the Phase II Stage I
Redevelopment of Castle Peak Hospital

• Set up the Institute of Mental Health in Castle Peak Hospital to further
promote mental health in the community

• Enhanced the outreach services of Siu Lam Hospital

• Delinked North District Hospital from the New Territories North Cluster
to dovetail with the latest development of hospital clusters

• Integrated the pathology and radiology services of Tuen Mun Hospital
and Pok Oi Hospital

• Commenced initial building works under the Pok Oi Hospital
Redevelopment Project

• Implemented third party logistics warehouse management in the New
Territories North Cluster

• Took over the management of Yan Oi General Outpatient Clinic from the
Department of Health to develop Family Medicine practices and training
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�� !"#�$!%&' !

Chairman   ��

Mr Stephen CHOW Chun-kay, BBS
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !
Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr C C LUK
�� !"# =J�� !"

Members   ��

Ms Joanlin C L AU
�� !"

Mr Christopher CHAN Yiu-chong
�� !"

Dr CHOW Chun-hung
�� !"

Mr FUNG Wing-chung, BBS
�� !"

Mr IP Kwok-chung, BBS, JP
�� !"

Mr KAN Chi-ho, MH
�� !"

Mrs Deborah KWAN SIU Lai-kwan, JP
�� !"#

Mr Andy LAU Kam-kwok
�� !"

Mr LEUNG Kam-fong
�� !"

Mr John MA Hung-ming
�� !"

Mr Maximillan MA Yung-kit
�� !"

Mr Benny NG Pang-lin, BBS
�� !"

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Mr Eddie WANG
�� !"

Mr Senta WONG, BBS
�� !"

Prof Jean WOO
�� !"

Mr Ricky YEUNG Chiu-sing
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Nam Long Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Dr Selwyn SO Kai-ming
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive - Dr S C LEUNG
�� !"# =J�� !"

Members   ��

Dr John CHAN Kwok-cheung
�� !"

Mr CHEUNG Che-Kwok
�� !"

Mr LAI Hok-lim
�� !"

Mrs LAU YU Po-kwan
�� ====��

Mr William PO Kam-man
�� !"

Dr POON Yeuk-foo
�� !"

Mr SUEN Lai-sang
�� ! 

Dr Vincent TSE Kin-chuen
�� !"

�
�
�

North District Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mr Stephen LAU Ka-men, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive - Dr K K LAI
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members  =��

Mr HAU Kam-lam
�� !"

Mr LAU Hou-ting
�� !"

Mr David LI Ka-fai
�� !"

Mr LIU Poon-keung
�� !"

Mr Paul MAK
�� !"

Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, JP
�� !"#

Dr PANG Hok-tuen, JP
�� !"

Dr Annie YEUNG Shou-fong
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Dr Conrad LAM Kui-shing, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Miss Margaret HONG
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Sister Agnes CAZALE
�� !"

Mr Vincent CHANG
�� ! 

Mr CHOI Luk-sing
�� !"

Ms Carlye F L CHU
�� !"

Rev CHU Yiu-ming
�� !"

Dr Benedict CHUNG Yat-ki
�� !"

Sister Helen KENNY
�� !"

Mrs Marigold LAU
�� !"#

Dr LI Chun-sang
�� ! 

Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
�� !"

Sister Betty Ann MAHEU
�� !"

Mr MAK Hoi-wah
�� !"

Mrs Pauline NG CHOW May-lin, JP
�� !"#

Mrs Beverly TONG
�� !"#

Dr YU Wing-kwong
�� !"

Pamela Youde Nethersole
Eastern Hospital
�� !"#$%&'(

Chairman   ��

Dr Raymond WU Wai-yung, GBS, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive - Dr Pamela LEUNG, JP
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
�� !"

Rev CHU Yiu-ming
�� !"

Dr HUANG Chen-ya
�� !"

Ms KO Siu-wah, SBS, JP
�� !"

Mr LAM Sum-chee
�� !"

Mr LEUNG Sau-chi, JP
�� !"

Mr Ll Fook-hing
�� !"

Mrs June Ll
�� !"#

Mr Simon SIT Poon-ki
�� !"

Prof TAM Sheung-wai, GBS, JP
�� !"

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Prince of Wales Hospital
�� !"��

Chairman   ��

Mr John CHAN Cho-chak, GBS, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Prof Allan CHANG
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Ms Annie LIANG BENTLEY
�� !"

Prof Sydney CHUNG
�� !"

Mr James B HAYBYRNE
�� !

Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu
�� !"

Co-opted Members   �� !

Ms Nancy KIT, JP
�� !"

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
�� !"

Pok Oi Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mr TSANG Yuen-hung, MH
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive - Dr H C LEE
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Bunny CHAN Chun-bun, JP
�� !"

Mrs Jennifer CHEUNG NG Chui-yiu
�� !"#

Mr Bosco HO Hin-ngai
�� !"

Mr Alex HO Kang-por
�� !"

Mr LOCK Kwok-on
�� !"

Mr David TSOI Tai-wai
�� !"

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho
�� !"

Mr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH
�� !"

Mr WONG Kai-tai
�� !"

Mr Zachary WONG Wai-yin
�� !"

Ms Annie WU Suk-ching, SBS, JP
�� !"

Mr Chris YIP Fong-keung, MH
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Princess Margaret Hospital
�� !"

Chairman   ��

Mr Vincent FANG Kang
�� !

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr Lily CHIU
�� !"# =J=��� !

Members   ��

Mr CHAN Sui-kau, GBS, JP
�� !"

Mr CHAU How-chen, SBS, JP
�� !"

Dr Lily CHIANG
�� !"

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
�� !"

Mrs Alice CHIU TSANG Hok-wan, JP
�� !"#

Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS
�� !"

Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong
�� !"

Mr Dennis LAU Wing-kwong, JP
�� !"

Prof Jonathan SHAM Shun-tong, JP
�� !"

Dr TSAO Yen-chow
�� !"

Queen Elizabeth Hospital
�� !"#

Chairman   ��

Mrs Eleanor LING LEE Ching-man, SBS, JP
�� !"#

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr York CHOW, SBS, JP
(up to 31.8.2001)
�� !�� J=�� !"
�� OMMN � U � PN ��

Dr Lawrence LAI, JP (from 1.9.2001)
�� !" =�� OMMN � V � N�� 

Members   ��

Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
�� !"

Mr CHEUNG Che-kwok
�� ====��

Dr Steven CHOW
�� !"

Mr Vincent FANG Kang
�� !

Dr LEE Kin-hung
�� !"

Mr Christopher MOK Wah-chiu
�� !"

Mr NG Kin-sun
�� !"

Dr NG YEOH Saw-kheng
�� !"#

��
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Queen Mary Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

The Hon Mrs Sophie LEUNG LAU Yau-fun, SBS, JP
�� !"#

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive –
Dr Vivian WONG TAAM Chi-woon, JP (up to 31.8.2001)
�� !"# J=�� !"# =�� OMMN� U � PN ��

Dr York CHOW, SBS, JP (from 1.9.2001)
�� !" =�� OMMN � V � N�� 

Members  =��

Mr LAM Kin-lai
�� !"

Prof S K LAM
�� !"

Prof John WONG, SBS
�� !"

Mr Dicky YIP, BBS, JP
�� !"

Co-opted members  =�� !

Dr Anthony HO Yiu-wah (from 29.5.2001)
�� !"�� OMMN � R � OV�� 

Dr Ronald LU
�� !"

Ms Ada WONG Ying-kay, JP
�� !"

Rehabaid Centre
�� !"#$%&

Chairman   ��

Mr Thomas J MULVEY, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
��� !"#$%&'()

Hospital Chief Executive – Ms Cecilia LAM Shiu-ling
�� !"# ==J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr CHUN Fei-pang
�� !"

Mrs Kimberley LAM KWONG Lan-heung
�� !"#

Mr Christopher LAW Kin-chung
�� !"

Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
�� !"

Mrs Anne MARDEN, JP
�� !

Mr SHIH Wing-ching
�� !"

Mr Kenneth SO Hop-shing
�� !"

Ms Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
�� !"#
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
�� !"#$%&

Chairman   ��

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr MA Hok-cheung
�� !"# ==J=�� !"

Members  =��

Mrs Marjorie BRAY
�� !"

Mr Charles CHAN Sing-chuk, JP
�� !"

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
�� !"

Mrs Peggy LAM, SBS, JP
�� !"#

Mr Sebastian LAU Ki-chit
������

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
�� !"

Mr LUI Che-woo, JP
�� !"

Mr Y L PANG, JP
�� !"

Miss Vera RUTTONJEE-DESAI
�� !" =J=�� !

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, BBS, JP
�� !"

Dr Richard YU Yue-hong
�� !"

Mr James YUE
�� !"

Shatin Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mr Michael HO Mun-ka
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr Susanna LO
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Stephen CHANG Hok-man
�� !"

Prof Samuel T CHANSON
�� !"

Mr Joseph KEUNG Shu-hoi
�� !"

Prof KWOK Siu-tong
�� !"

Mrs Molly LEE
�� !"#

Mr Arthur Ll Ka-tat
�� !"

Mr Thomas PANG Cheung-wai
�� !"

Mr Peter SUEN Yiu-chan
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Tai Po Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mr LEE Jark-pui, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr Nancy TUNG
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Ruy Octavio BARRETTO
�� !"

Mrs Gladys CHEN
�� !"#

Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai
�� !"

Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung
�� !"

Mr Tony LUK Ka-luen
�� !"

Ms Scarlett PONG Oi-lan
�� !"

Mr Sammy POONE, JP
�� !"

Mrs Anne SHIH YU Mee-yee
�� !"#

Dr SHUM Chi-wang
�� !"

Dr YU Kwan
�� !

Tsan Yuk Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mrs Ivy WU KWOK Sau-ping, JP
�� !"#

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive –
Dr Vivian WONG TAAM Chi-woon, JP (up to 31.8.2001)
�� !"# J=�� !"#
�� OMMN � U � PN ��

Dr York CHOW, SBS, JP (from 1.9.2001)
�� !" ==�� OMMN � V � N�� 

Members   ��

Mr CHAN Choi-hi
�� !"

Prof HO Pak-chung
�� !"

Mrs Rita LIU, BBS
�� !"#

Mrs Kathryn LOUEY, BBS
�� !"#

Prof MA CHUNG Ho-kei, JP
�� !"#

Mr Robert SZE
�� !"

Mr Lincoln TSO
�� !

Ms Margaret WONG
�� !"

(The Committee was dissolved on 18 January 2002 upon
relocation of the hospital’s inpatient obstetrics and neonatal
services to the Queen Mary Hospital)
�� !"#$%&'()*+",-./01!"2345
� OMMO � N � NU�� !
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Tuen Mun Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Dr C H LEONG, GBS, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr M Y CHENG
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr CHAN How-chi
�� !"

Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen
�� =====��

Dr Eddie CHAN Tat
�� !

Mr Kenneth LAM Yiu-kin
�� !"

Mr Kenneth LAU lp-keung, MH, JP
�� !"

Dr the Hon TANG Siu-tong, JP
�� !"

Mr TSO Shiu-wai
�� !"

Mr Jonathan YU Hoy-gin, JP
�� !"

��

Tung Wah Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mr Stephen CHOW Chun-kay, BBS
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr K T TOM
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Christopher CHAN Yiu-chong
�� !"

Mr Albert CHEUNG Chung-put, JP
�� !"

Dr CHIU Hin-kwong, JP
�� !"

Mr HUNG Wing-tat
�� !"

Mr Andy LAU Kam-kwok
�� !"

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
�� !"

Mr LEUNG Kam-fong
�� !"

Mr Frederick LUI Lai-cheung, JP
�� !"

Mr Willie LUI Pok-shek JP
�� !"

Mr John MA Hung-ming
�� !"

Mr Maximilian MA Yung-kit
�� !"

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Mr Eddie WANG
�� !"

Mr Senta WONG, BBS
�� !"

Mr Ricky YEUNG Chiu-sing
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital
��� 

Chairman   ��

Mr Stephen CHOW Chun-kay, BBS
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr K T TOM
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Christopher CHAN Yiu-chong
�� !"

Mr Albert CHEUNG Chung-put, JP
�� !"

Mr Andy LAU Kam-kwok
�� !"

Mr LEUNG Kam-fong
�� !"

Mr Mark LI Kin-yin
�� !"

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting. JP
�� !"

Dr the Hon LO Wing-lok
�� !"

Mr Frederick LUI Lai-cheung, JP
�� !"

Mr Willie LUI Pok-shek JP
�� !"

Mr John MA Hung-ming
�� !"

Mr Maximilian MA Yung-kit
�� !"

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Mr Eddie WANG
�� !"

Dr Wong Kam-din
�� !"

Mr Senta WONG, BBS
�� !"

Mr Ricky YEUNG Chiu-sing
�� !"

TWGH Fung Yiu King Hospital
�� !"#$%!

`Ü~áêã~å===��

Mr Stephen CHOW Chun-kay, BBS
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr Cissy YU
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members   ��

Mr Christopher CHAN Yiu-chong
�� !"

Mr Albert CHEUNG Chung-put, JP
�� !"

Dr CHU Chor-lup
�� !"

Mr Peter KAN Man-lee
�� !"

Mr Andy LAU Kam-kwok
�� !"

Mr LEUNG Kam-fong
�� !"

Mr Frederick LUI Lai-cheung, JP
�� !"

Mr Willie LUI Pok-shek, JP
�� !"

Mr John MA Hung-ming
�� !"

Mr Maximillan MA Yung-kit
�� !"

Mr Nelson MIU Liong
�� !

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Mr Eddie WANG
�� !"

Mr Senta WONG, BBS
�� !"

Mr Ricky YEUNG Chiu-sing
�� !"
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Membership of the Hospital Governing Committees
�� !"#$%#

Yan Chai Hospital
�� !

Chairman   ��

Mrs Christina CHENG SO Mei, MH
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr David CHENG
�� !"# =J=�� !"

Members  =��

Mr Star CHAN lu-seng
�� !"

Mr CHAU Tak-wai
�� !"

Mr CHENG Chit-ming
�� !"

Mrs IP YEUNG Fuk-lan
�� !"#

Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui
�� !"

Dr LEE Chun-yu
�� !"

Mr Douglas LEE Kar-yan
�� !"

Mr Raymond LEE Man-chun
�� !"

Mr Nelson LEONG Kwok-fai
�� !"

Mr Clarence LO
�� !"

Mrs Alice MAK CHAN Siu-hing
�� !"#

Ms Anita TANG Fung-yiu
�� !"

Ms Bess TSIN Man-kuen
�� !"

Mr Ben WONG Chung-mat, MH
�� !"

Mr Stanley YIM Yuk-lun
�� !"

United Christian Hospital
�� !"#$

`Ü~áêã~å===��
Mr John Ll Kwok-heem
�� !"

Ex-officio members   �� !
Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Hospital Chief Executive – Dr C Y TSE
�� !"# =J�� !"

Members   ��
Rev Joshua CHAN Yut-wah
�� !"
Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
�� !"
Ms Sophia KAO
�� !"
Mr Patrick LAI Shu-ho, MH
�� !"
Rev Ralph LEE Ting-sun
�� !"
Rev Lincoln LEUNG Lam-hoi
�� !"
Mr Ll Fook-hing
�� !"
Mrs June Ll
�� !"#
Prof Arthur K C Ll, GBS, JP
�� !"
Rev LUK Fai
�� !
Dr NIP Kam-fan, JP
�� !"
Mrs Winnie POON YUN Wai-chun
�� !"#
Mr Simon SIT Poon-ki
�� !"
Prof TAM Sheung-wai, GBS, JP
�� !"
Rev Paul TSANG Kai-choy
�� !"
Rt Rev Louis TSUI Tsan-sang
�� !"
Dr WAI Heung-wah
�� !"
Mr WONG Bing-lai
�� !"
Mr WU Kwok-cheung, MH
�� !"
Ms Alice YUK Tak-fun, JP
�� !"
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Membership of the Regional Advisory Committees
�� !"#$%#

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee
�� !"#$%&

Chairman===��

Dr Conrad LAM Kui-shing, JP (up to 30.11.2001)
�� !" =E�� OMMN� NN � PM �F

Dr Anthony HO Yiu-wah (from 1.4.2002)
�� !" E� OMMO � Q � N �� F

Ex-officio members===�� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*

Director of Health or her representative
��  !"#$%

Members===��

Mr Christopher CHAN Yiu-chong
�� !"

Dr David FANG, SBS, JP
�� ! 

Dr HUANG Chen-ya
�� !"

Mr KO Tam-kan
�� !"

Ms Maggie KOONG May-kay
�� !"

Dr KWOK Ka-ki
�� !"

Mr LAM Kin-lai
�� !"

Mr LAM Kit-sing
�� !"

Mr Andy LAU Kam-kwok
�� !"

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen
�� !"

Mr MAK Shun-pong
�� !"

Mr Y L PANG, JP
�� !"

Members===��

Dr POON Yeuk-foo
�� !"

jêë=^äáÅÉ=mlkd=qpl=pÜáåÖJóìâ
�� !"#

Dr K T TOM
�� !"

Mr TSENG Cheng, JP
�� !

Dr Damayanthi WIJEDORU
�� !"

Prof WONG Hoi-kwok, BBS, JP
�� !"

Ms Ada WONG Ying-kay
�� !"

Mrs Ivy WU KWOK Sau-ping, JP
�� !"#

Mr Ricky YEUNG Chiu-sing
�� !"

Mr Dicky YIP, BBS, JP
�� !"

Mr Paul T K YOUNG, JP
�� !"

Appendix 4 ���
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hçïäççå=oÉÖáçå~ä=̂ Çîáëçêó=`çããáííÉÉ
�� !"#$%&

Chairman===��

Dr Raymond WU Wai-yung, GBS, JP (up to 31.3.2002)
�� !" =E�� OMMO � P � PN � F

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, JP (from 1.4.2002)
�� !" E� OMMO � Q � N �� F

Ex-officio members===�� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*
Director of Health or her representative
��  !"#$%

Members===��

Miss Eliza C H CHAN, JP
�� !"

Mr Henry CHAN Man-yu
�� !"

Mr Charles C Y CHIU
�� !"

Mr FUNG Kwong-chung, JP
�� !"

Mr IP Che-kin
�� !"

Mr KWOK Bit-chun
�� !"

Dr LAM Ching-choi
�� !"

Dr David LAM
�� !"

Mr Keith LAM Hon-keung, JP
�� !"

Mrs Kimberley LAM KWONG Lan-heung
�� !"#

Dr LEE Kin-hung
�� !"

Dr Michael LEE Yuk-kwan, JP
�� =====��

Mr LEUNG Kam-tao
�� !"

Mr John LI Kwok-heem
�� !"

Mr Vincent LO Wing-sang, JP
�� ! 

Mr John MA Hung-ming
�� !"

Mr MAK Hoi-wah
�� !"

Mr Eddie WANG
�� !"

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai
�� !"

kÉï=qÉêêáíçêáÉë=oÉÖáçå~ä=̂ Çîáëçêó=`çããáííÉÉ
�� !"#$%&

Chairman===��

Mr LEE Jark-pui, JP
�� !"

Ex-officio members===�� !

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
�� !"#$%&'()*
Director of Health or her representative
��  !"#$%

Members===��

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung
�� !"

Mr John CHAN Cho-chak, GBS, JP
�� !"
Mr CHAN How-chi
�� !"
The Hon CHAN Wai-yip
�� !"
Mrs Christina CHENG SO Mei, MH
�� !"
Mr Clifton CHIU Chi-cheong
�� !"
Mr Joseph CHOW Kam-siu
�� !"
Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS
�� !"
Prof Sydney S C CHUNG
�� !"
Mr LAU Hou-ting
�� !"
Prof Edith LAU Ming-chu
�� !"
Ms Robena LEE Ying
�� !
Mr LEUNG Wo-ping
�� !"
Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat
�� !"
Dr Winston W C LIM(up to 17.9.2001)
�� !" E�� OMMN � V � NT � F
Mrs Rita LIU, BBS
�� !"#
Mr Tony LUK Ka-luen
�� !"
Mr Simon SIT Poon-ki
�� !"
Mr TSANG Yuen-hung, MH
�� !"
Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu
�� !"
Mr Raymond S K WONG
�� !"
Mr WONG Yiu-chung
�� !"
Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
�� !"

�
�
�
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Membership of the Board of
Trustees of the Hospital Authority
Provident Fund Scheme
�� !�� !"#$%&'()'

Chairman===��
Dr LO Ka-shui, JP
�� !"

jÉãÄÉêë===��

Dr William HO, JP
�� !"

Mrs Eleanor LING LEE Ching-man, SBS, JP
�� !"#

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS
�� !"

Employee Trustees   �� !

Ms Sylvia FUNG Yuk-kuen
�� !"

Mr TONG Kar-wai
�� !"

Dr WONG Tak-cheung
�� !"

Mr Benjamin LEE Cheung-mei (from 17.9.2001)
�� !" =E� OMMN � V � NT �� F

Independent Trustees   �� !"#

Dr E K YEOH, JP
�� !"

Mr Marvin CHEUNG Kin-tung, SBS, JP
�� !"

Ms Amy YIP Yok-tak, BBS, JP (from 17.9.2001)
�� !" =E� OMMN � V � NT �� F

'

'
'

Appendix 5 ���
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Organisation Structure of the Hospital Authority
�� !"#$%&

Director
(Professional Services &

Human Resources)

'�� !"#$%&'(

Director
(Professional Services &

Planning)

'�� !"#$%&

Director
(Professional Services &

Public Affairs)

'�� !"#$ !%&
Regional Advisory

Committee

'�� !"#$

Chief Executive

�� !

Hospital Authority

'�� !"

Director
(Finance)

'�� !

Director
(Professional Services &
Medical Development)

'�� !"#$%&'(

Cluster Chief Executives

�� !"#

Hospital Chief
Executives

'�� !"#

According to the Hospital Authority salary remuneration chart, the salary range of the first five staff members in 2001/02 are :
�� !"#$%&'() OMMNLMO�� !"#$%&'()*

Appendix 6 ���

�� ! �� !"#
Range of remuneration No. of executives

$3,450,001 - $3,950,000 3

$3,950,001 - $4,450,000 1

$4,450,001 - $4,950,000 1

5

Hospital Governing
Committees

'�� !"#$
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Organisation Structure of the Hospital Authority
�� !"#$%&

`Ü~áêã~å k~ãÉ=çÑ=lÑÑáÅÉê
�� �� !

Chief Executive Dr William HO, JP
�� ! �� !"

Director (Professional Services & Planning) Dr FUNG Hong, JP
�� !"#$%& �� !

Director (Professional Services & Public Affairs) Dr KO Wing-man, JP
�� !"#$%& �� !"

Director (Professional Services & Human Resources) Dr Kathleen SO, JP
�� !"#$%&'( �� !"

Director (Professional Services & Medical Development) Dr Vivian TAAM WONG, JP
�� !"#$%&'( �� !"#

Director (Finance) Ms Nancy TSE
�� ! �� !"

Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East Cluster) Prof Allan CHANG
�� !"#$%& �� !"

Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong East Cluster) Dr Pamela LEUNG, JP
�� !"#$%& �� !"

Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon East Cluster) Dr C Y TSE
�� !"#$%& �� !"
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Number of Beds in Public Hospitals
�� !"#$%&

Hong Kong East & West Clusters   �� !��"#$%&
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok ==�� !"#$% 240

Duchess of Kent Chidlren’s Hospitals at Sandy Bay  =�� !"#$%&'()* 130

Grantham Hospital   �� !" 579

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre   �� !"# 130

Nam Long Hospital  =�� ! 200

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital   �� !"#$%&'( 1,733

Queen Mary Hospital   �� ! 1,550

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals  =�� !"#$%& 687

St John Hospital    �� ! 93

Tsan Yuk Hospital   �� ! 88

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital   ��� 303

TWGH’s Fung Yiu King Hospital  �� !"#$%! 296

Tung Wah Hospital   �� ! 787

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital  �� !" 200

Sub-total   �� 7,016

Population *  =�� G 1,443,100

Beds per ‘000 population  =�� !"#$ 4.86

Kowloon East, Central & West Clusters   �� !��"#��$%&'(
Caritas Medical Centre  =�� ! 1,392

Haven of Hope Hospital   �� ! 305

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital   �� !"# 356

Hong Kong Eye Hospital   �� !"# 64

Kowloon Hospital   �� ! 1,259

Kwai Chung Hospital  =�� ! 1,534

Kwong Wah Hospital   �� ! 1,425

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital   �� ! 258

Princess Margaret Hospital   �� !" 1,561

Queen Elizabeth Hospital   �� !"# 1,850

Tseung Kwan O Hospital   �� !" 410

TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital   �� !"#$%! 1,006

United Christian Hospital   �� !"#$ 1,265

Yan Chai Hospital   �� ! 873

Sub-total   �� 13,558

Population *   �� G 3,196,500

Beds per ‘000 population   �� !"#$ 4.24

No. of beds (as at 31.3.2002)

�� ! 'E�� OMMO � P � PN �F
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New Territories East & West Clusters   �������� !"
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital   �� !"#$%&'( 492

Bardbury Hospice   �� !"#$ 26

Castle Peak Hospital   �� ! 1,691

Cheshire Home, Shatin ==�� !"#$ 296

North District Hospital   �� ! 633

Pok Oi Hospital   �� ! 404

Prince of Wales Hospital   �� !"#$ 1,364

Shatin Hospital   �� ! 649

Siu Lam Hospital   �� ! 300

Tai Po Hospital   �� ! 960

Tuen Mun Hospital   �� ! 1,633

Sub-total   �� 8,448

Population   �� G 2,338,600

Beds per ‘000 population   �� !"#$ 3.61

Grand Total  =�� 29,022

Population   �� G 6,978,200

Beds per ‘000 population   �� !"#$ 4.16

* 2001 end year population estimate (including marine population and transients)
G=OMMN��� !"#$�� !"#$%&'(

No. of beds (as at 31.3.2002)

�� ! 'E�� OMMO � P � PN �F
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Public Hospitals Services
�� !"#

1997 /98 1998 /99 1999 / 00 2000 / 01 2001 / 02
General Inpatient Services (excluding
Psychiatry and Mentally Handicapped)
�� !"#$�� !"#$%&'()=F

(a) Number of discharges1 973,642 1,040,476 1,091,454 1,151,661 1,194,329
�� ! N

(b) Number of patient days (bed days occupied) 5,845,142 6,265,834 6,560,035 6,638,917 6,744,886
�� !"�� !"#$

(c) Average occupancy rate (%) 83.3 83.8 86.1 84.9 85.0
�� !"�B�

(d) Average length of stay (days) 7.3 7.3 7.3 7.1 7.1
�� !"#�� !

(e) Number of Accident and Emergency attendances2 2,168,777 2,360,679 2,407,118 2,403,090 2,522,972
�� !"#$ O

Outpatient Clinics (excluding Psychiatry and
Mentally Handicapped)
��� !�� !"#$%&'()*

(a) Number of specialist outpatient attendances 4,570,147 4,938,277 5,054,669 5,304,186 5,432,486
�� !"!#$

(b) Number of allied health outpatient  attendances 2,423,071 2,694,653 2,495,776 2,395,407 2,452,914
�� !"#$#%&

(c) Number of integrated clinic attendances - - 25,630 89,482 146,793
�� !" #$

(d) Number of general outpatient attendances 759,127 756,723 776,578 813,710 887,328
�� !"#"$%

Community Nursing Services
�� !"#

(a) Number of patients treated 31,643 34,946 40,199 45,944 50,960
�� !"#

(b) Number of home visits 439,319 478,633 554,269 633,003 685,712
�� !

Psychiatric and Mentally Handicapped Services
�� !"#$%

(a) Number of discharges1 11,849 12,502 13,156 14,306 14,098
�� ! N

(b) Number of patient days (bed days occupied) 1,915,740 1,917,301 1,887,811 1,853,017 1,695,559
�� !"�� !"#

(c) Average occupancy rate (%) 90.6 89.7 86.3 83.5 82.0
�� !"�B�

(d) Average length of stay (days) 165.9 167.5 163.2 190.8 150.0
�� !"�� 

(e) Number of psychiatric specialist outpatient attendances 371,788 400,198 432,069 471,262 511,167
�� ! "#$%

1 including deaths �� !"#
2 including Accident and Emergency follow-up attendances  �� !"#$%&

Appendix 8 ���
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Institution��
Hong Kong East Cluster
�� !"#$

Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 337 92.9 119.7 - - 234 -
�� !"#$%

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 93,828 88.9 7.4 196,908 564,192 172,289 26,807
�� !"#$%&'(

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 28,987 89.2 7.9 110,507 104,122 122,566 2,826
�� !"#$%&

St John Hospital 3,910 73.5 11.2 13,641 2,058 13,883 -
�� !

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 8,232 86.1 14.1 - 104,532 71,542 1,612
��� 

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital 865 90.5 62.9 - - - -
�� !"

Sub-total 136,159 88.7 8.8 321,056 774,904 380,514 31,245
��

Hong Kong West Cluster

�� !"#$

Duchess of Kent Children’s 2,458 59.8 16.3 - 16,993 29,884 -
Hospital at Sandy Bay
�� !"#$%&'()*

TWGH Fung Yiu King Hospital 2,577 85.1 29.4 - 228 -
�� !"#$%!

Grantham Hospital 13,292 65.4 14.0 - 54,046 2,541 -
�� !"

MacLehose Medical 688 88.7 48.4 - - 1,254 -
Rehabilitation Centre
�� !"#

Nam Long Hospital 1,830 69.8 26.1 - 741 1,901 -
�� !

Queen Mary Hospital 101,564 80.8 5.4 149,874 522,525 200,748 -
�� !

Tung Wah Hospital 23,367 75.9 17.6 - 44,357 7,978 -
�� !

Tsan Yuk Hospital 10,762 56.7 4.2 - 30,132 4,939 16,656
�� !

Sub-total 156,538 75.9 8.8 149,874 668,794 249,473 16,656
��

Statistics on Inpatient, Accident and Emergency
Specialist Outpatient Services, 2001/02
OMMNLMO�� !"#$%&"#'()*+"#,-

Appendix 9 ���
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Kowloon East Cluster
�� !"#$

Haven of Hope Hospital 6,313 90.6 22.0 - 7,217 3,575 -
�� !

Tseung Kwan O Hospital 24,632 72.0 4.7 119,295 95,614 52,230 1,395
�� !"

United Christian Hospital 81,679 89.5 5.6 238,797 438,881 221,991 23,496
�� !"#$

Sub-total 112,624 86.4 6.5 358,092 541,712 277,796 24,891
��

Kowloon Central Cluster
�� !"#$

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 7,774 80.3 16.5 - 28,279 4,480 -
�� !"#

Hong Kong Eye Hospital 6,784 41.5 4.7 - 214,572 140,779 -
�� !"#

Kowloon Hospital 15,234 84.1 22.1 - 62,109 114,328 -
�� !

Queen Elizabeth Hospital 136,788 88.1 5.7 231,399 631,234 196,706 3,710
�� !"#

Rehabaid Centre - - - - 102 3,533 -
�� !"#$%&

Sub-total 166,580 85.3 8.2 231,399 936,296 459,826 3,710
��

Kowloon West Cluster
�� !"#$

Caritas Medical Centre 57,463 79.9 9.2 141,639 332,311 100,767 5,210
�� !

Kwai Chung Hospital 4,044 78.4 147.6 - 161,224 43,882 -
�� !

Kwong Wah Hospital 93,285 87.0 5.2 244,250 345,542 139,772 3,958
�� !

Lai Chi Kok Hospital 72 13.7 3008.1 - - - -
�� !"

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 8,658 68.1 9.1 - 59,004 27,389 5,709
�� !

Princess Margaret Hospital 89,497 87.8 6.4 151,920 332,110 105,764 -
�� !"

TWGH Wong Tai Sin Hospital 8,881 77.2 33.8 - - 1,081 -
�� !"#$%!

Yan Chai Hospital 45,600 92.9 6.3 161,496 182,412 65,615 -
�� !

Sub-total 307,500 82.3 10.7 699,305 1,412,603 484,270 14,877
��

Inpatient
Occupancy

Rate (%)
�� !
�� 
�B�

Total
IP & DP

Discharges
and Deaths
�� !"
�� !"
�� !

Inpatient
Average

Length of
Stay (days)
�� !
�� !

����� 

Total
A&E

Attendances
�� 

�� !"

Total
SOP

Attendances
�� !
�� 

Total
AH OP

Attendances
�� !

�� !"

Total
integrated

clinic
attendances
�� !
�� !"
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New Territories East Cluster
�� !"#$

Alice Ho Mui Ling Nethersole Hospital 47,745 88.4 5.0 142,784 200,407 94,220 5,804
�� !"#$%&'(

Bradbury Hospice 645 86.3 12.9 - 467 2,082 -
�� !"#$

North District Hospital 31,894 81.3 6.0 137,301 157,250 82,855 -
�� !

Prince of Wales Hospital 102,479 84.4 5.4 202,581 624,386 186,684 19,676
�� !"#$

Cheshire Home, Shatin 2,571 86.4 33.4 - - 936 -
�� !"#$

Shatin Hospital 5,505 89.4 35.7 - 800 3,632 -
�� !

Tai Po Hospital 7,754 84.5 33.7 - 115 902 -
�� !

Sub-total 198,593 85.4 8.5 482,666 983,425 371,311 25,480
��

New Territories West Cluster
���� !"

Castle Peak Hospital 2,114 86.3 294.4 - 69,765 22,149 -
�� !

Pok Oi Hospital 4,873 81.3 22.6 - 31,828 21,390 -
�� !

Siu Lam Hospital 102 98.7 597.5 - - - -
�� !

Tuen Mun Hospital 123,344 90.5 5.2 280,580 524,326 186,185 29,934
�� !

Sub-total 130,433 88.9 12.2 280,580 625,919 229,724 29,934
��

Grand-total 1,208,427 84.4 9.3 2,522,972 5,943,653 2,452,914 146,793
��

Notes:
��

1. Rehabaid Centre and Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service are Hospital Authority institutions with specific
functions but no hospital beds.
�� !"#$%&"'()*+,-./0%&123456789:;<=>?9@A%&BCDEFG

2. Lai Chi Kok Hospital has been renamed as Lai Chi Kok Hospital HACare Home which is under the management of HACare
since August 2001.
�� !"#$ OMMN� U�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !"#$%

3. The specialist outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under respective hospital management.
�� !"#$�%�&'()*+,- ./0123
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Statistics on Community Services, 2001/02
OMMNLMO�� !"#$%

Institution��

Hong Kong East Cluster
�� !"#$

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 81,420 8,070 1,517 2,929 -
�� !"#$%&'(

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals - - - - 100,546
�� !"#$%&

St John Hospital 4,762 - - - -
�� !

Sub-total 86,182 8,070 1,517 2,929 100,546
��

Hong Kong West Cluster
�� !"#$

TWGH Fung Yiu King Hospital - - - - 30,153
�� !"#$%!

Queen Mary Hospital 46,954 2,482 1,990 7,959 -
�� !

Sub-total 46,954 2,482 1,990 7,959 30,153
��

Kowloon East Cluster
�� !"#$

Haven of Hope Hospital 28,096 - - - 2,624
�� !

United Christian Hospital 121,335 5,881 1,402 3,538 25,454
�� !"#$

Sub-total 149,431 5,881 1,402 3,538 28,078
��

Kowloon Central Cluster
�� !"#$

Kowloon Hospital 40,553 3,480 1,483 4,867 24,174
�� !

Queen Elizabeth Hospital - - - - 12,771
�� !"#

Sub-total 40,553 3,480 1,483 4,867 36,945
��

Appendix 10 ���
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Kowloon West Cluster
�� !"#$

Caritas Medical Centre 62,642 - - - 30,351
�� !

Kwai Chung Hospital - 14,280 2,342 7,762 -
�� !

Kwong Wah Hospital 34,003 - - - 29,648
�� !

Our Lady of Maryknoll 43,468 - - - -
Hospital
�� !

Princess Margaret Hospital 71,931 - - - 37,827
�� !"

Sub-total 212,044 14,280 2,342 7,762 97,826
��

New Territories East Cluster
�� !"#$

AHML Nethersole Hospital 17,146 - - - -
�� !"#$%&'(

North District Hospital 27,377 - 1,766 - 2,038
�� !

Shatin Hospital 34,733 3,929 2,399 4,975 16,796
�� !

Tai Po Hospital - 1,937 1,041 - 8,511
�� !

Sub-total 79,256 5,866 5,206 4,975 27,345
��

New Territories West Cluster
����� !

Castle Peak Hospital - 14,261 3,148 5,432 -
�� !

Tuen Mun Hospital 71,292 - - - 23,277
�� !

Sub-total 71,292 14,261 3,148 5,432 23,277
��

Grand-total 685,712 54,320 17,088 37,462 344,170
��

* For Community Nursing Service and Community Psychiatric Nursing Service, the activity refers to number of home visits made.
G�� !"#$%&'()*+,-$%&'()./01 2

# For Community Psychiatric Service and Psychogeriatrics Service, the activity refers to total number of outreach attendances and
   home visits. The activity of Psychogeriatrics Service also includes consultation-liaision attendances.
@�� !"#$%&'()*+,-&'()*./0+123 4,-&'()*56789:; 4

@ For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total number of outreach attendances and assessments performed.
]�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./()0 1

Note : The activity performed in different centres/teams are grouped under respective hospital management.
�� !"#$%&'()*%+,-./01234
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�� !]



99

Public Complaints Committee   �� !"#$

Nature of Cases Complaints received (1.4.2001-31.3.2002)
�� ! �� ! ENKQKOMMNJPNKPKOMMOF

Medical Services 76
�� !

Staff Attitude 6
�� !

Administrative Procedure 2
�� !

Others 5
��

Total Number of Complaints 89
�� !"

Hospital Complaints / Appreciation Statistics   �� ! L�� !(1.4.2001 – 31.3.2002)

Nature of Complaint Cases Number
���� ! ��

Medical Services 710
�� !

Staff Attitude 505
�� !

Administrative Procedure 221
�� !

Others 160
��

Total Number of Complaints 1,596
�� !"

Total Number of Appreciation 26,576
�� !"

Public Feedback Statistics
�� !"#

Appendix 11 ����
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Manpower Position of the Hospital Authority - by Staff Group
�� !"#$%&�� !"#$%&

Medical   �� 97/98 98/99 99/00 00/01 01/02

Consultant   �� ! 466 494 496 501 526

Senior Medical Officer/Associate Consultant   �� !"#$% ! 791 860 873 879 903

Medical Officer/Resident  =�� !"�� 2030 2112 2292 2508 2676

Intern/Extern   �� !��"#$% 291 334 314 330 351

Senior Dental Officer/Dental Officer   �� !"#$ !"# 3 4 4 4 4

Medical Total   �� !"# 3581 3804 3979 4222 4460

Nursing   ��

Senior Nursing Officer and above   �� !"#$% 117 114 111 105 99

Department Operations Manager   �� !"# 181 191 186 177 173

General   �� 

Ward Manager   �� ! 557 563 553 541 532

Nurse Specialist   �� ! 159 170 172 176 194

Nursing Officer   �� 1801 1861 1830 1779 1737

Registered Nurse   �� ! 8041 8726 9379 10081 11063

Student Nurse   �� !"# 2762 2769 1855 1228 360

Enrolled Nurse   �� ! 3098 3205 3234 3437 3481

Pupil Nurse   �� !"# 786 632 416 112

Midwife/Other   �� L �� 109 105 95 92 84

Psychiatric  =�� 

Ward Manager   �� ! 112 113 115 110 105

Nurse Specialist   �� ! 13 14 14 14 15

Nursing Officer   �� 214 223 218 215 212

Nurse   �� ! 627 707 787 877 978

Student Nurse   �� !"# 360 357 240 141 33

Enrolled Nurse   �� ! 642 652 648 645 644

Pupil Nurse   �� !"# 35 33 27 16 -

Nursing Total   �� !"# 19614 20435 19880 19746 19710

Allied Health   �� !

Audiology Technician  =�� !"# 10 11 11 11 11

Clinical Psychologist   �� !"# 54 57 59 60 70

Dietitian   �� 76 79 77 80 84

Dispenser   �� 656 660 642 640 665

Medical Laboratory Technician   �� !" 1097 1104 1092 1088 1085

Mould Laboratory Technician   �� !"#$% 28 28 28 28 28

Optometrist   �� 25 24 26 26 26

Orthoptist   �� !" 10 13 12 12 12

Occupational Therapist   �� !" 399 417 427 445 463

Pharmacist   �� 162 170 170 179 202

Appendix 12 ����
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Physicist   �� ! 39 39 38 38 38

Physiotherapist   �� !" 637 657 659 685 709

Podiatrist   �� !" 17 19 21 20 22

Prosthetist-Orthotist   �� !" 82 89 91 93 96

Radiographer   �� ! 756 775 771 798 808

Scientific Officer (Medical)   �� !=E��F 56 56 57 56 56

Speech Therapist   �� !" 41 45 49 51 53

Medical Social Worker   �� !"#$% 145 147 147 155 160

Others   �� 5 2 2 2 2

Allied Health Total   �� !"#$% 4295 4392 4379 4467 4590

Health Care Assistant   �� !"# 3394 3825 3868 4138 4561

Ward Attendant   �� !" 2318 2155 1999 1710 1310

General Services Assistant /
Technical Services Assistant (Care-related) - - - - 140
�� !��� !"#=E��F

Health Care Assistant / Ward Attendant / 5712 5980 5867 5848 6011
General Services Assistant / Technical Services Assistant Total
�� !"#$%& !'$()*!$+, !"#$-.

Direct Patient Care Total 33202 34611 34105 34283 34771
�� !"#!$%&

Others   ��

Chief Executive / Directors / Deputy Director 14 13 10 9 7
�� !" #"$ #

Cluster Chief Executive / Hospital Chief Executive 43 42 42 37 33
�� !"#$��%&"#

Senior Executive Manager, 108 110 105 104 101
Executive Manager, General Manager
�� !"#$ !"#$%"#

Other Professionals/ Administrative - 873 879 853 851 859
Accountant, Hospital Administrator,
Systems Manager, Analyst Programmer, etc
�� !"#$%& =� =�� !"#$%!
�� !"��#$%&'()*+

Other Supporting Staff - Clerical, Secretarial, 15294 15548 15093 14649 14037
Workmen, Artisan, Laundry Workers, etc
�� !"# =� =�� !" #$ %# 
�� !"

Non-direct Patient Care Total 16332 16592 16103 15650 15037
�� !"#$"%&'

Grand Total 49534 51203 50208 49933 49808
�� !"#$

Note : Strength figures reported above include all permanent and contract staff working on full-time or part-time basis.
� =W=�� !"#$%&'()*+),-./01234
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Manpower Position of the Hospital Authority – by Institution
�� !"#$%&�� !"#$

===========================================================================================================================kçK=çÑ=ëí~ÑÑ=E~ë=~í=PNKPKOMMOF
===========================================================================================================================�� !=E�� OMMO � P � PN�F

jÉÇáÅ~ä kìêëáåÖ ^ääáÉÇ=eÉ~äíÜ líÜÉêë qçí~ä
�� �� �� ! �� ===============��

Institution
��

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 145 464 136 517 1262
�� !"#$%&'(

Bradbury Hospice 2 30 3 21 56
�� !"#$

Caritas Medical Centre 203 752 174 784 1913
�� !

Castle Peak Hospital 48 525 51 606 1230
�� !

Cheshire Home (Shatin) 1 90 12 85 188
�� !"#$

Cheshire Home (Chung Hom Kok) 3 52 9 96 160
�� !"#$%

Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital 11 69 42 119 241
�� !"#$%&'

Grantham Hospital 49 358 58 282 747
�� !"

Haven of Hope Hospital 16 261 48 278 603
�� !

HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 3 78 45 150 276
�� !"#$%&'()

HK Tuberculosis, Chest & 0 0 0 11 11
Heart Diseases Association
�� !"#$%&'(

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 17 143 23 141 324
�� !"#

Hong Kong Eye Hospital 35 71 15 112 233
�� !"#

Kowloon Hospital 43 646 145 604 1438
�� !

Kwai Chung Hospital 62 644 73 572 1351
�� !

Kwong Wah Hospital 289 1142 241 1104 2776
�� !

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 3 35 39 83 160
�� !"#

Nam Long Hospital 8 87 10 98 203
�� !

North District Hospital 114 504 95 442 1155
�� !

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 59 225 50 202 536
�� !

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 364 1258 289 1536 3447
�� !"#$%&
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*Not including 334 core staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office and 468 staff in Hospital Authority’s agency services.
G�� !"#$%&'()*+ PPQ�� !"#$%&'( QSU ��

Pok Oi Hospital 39 188 45 232 504
�� !

Prince of Wales Hospital 438 1520 384 1437 3779
�� !"#$

Princess Margaret Hospital 314 1295 274 1237 3120
�� !"

Queen Elizabeth Hospital 482 1790 445 1615 4332
�� !"#

Queen Mary Hospital 422 1618 439 1470 3949
�� !

Rehabaid Centre 0 1 13 13 27
�� !"#$%&

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 93 413 155 583 1244
�� !"#$%&

Shatin Hospital 27 319 59 355 760
�� !

Siu Lam Hospital 4 71 5 207 287
�� !

St John Hospital 6 43 10 74 133
�� !

Tai Po Hospital 31 309 59 371 770
�� !

Tsan Yuk Hospital 10 39 28 52 129
�� !

Tseung Kwan O Hospital 118 362 104 279 863
�� !"

Tuen Mun Hospital 384 1449 357 1467 3657
�� !

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital 39 199 55 248 541
��� 

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 10 88 18 131 247
Fung Yiu King Hospital
�� !"#$%!

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals 30 252 42 289 613
Wong Tai Sin Hospital
�� !"#$%!

Tung Wah Hospital 43 350 57 304 754
�� !

United Christian Hospital 348 1259 305 1283 3195
�� !"#$

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital 5 57 12 139 213
�� !"

Yan Chai Hospital 140 631 128 680 1579
�� !

Total 4458 19687 4552 20309 49006*
��

===========================================================================================================================kçK=çÑ=ëí~ÑÑ=E~ë=~í=PNKPKOMMOF
===========================================================================================================================�� !=E�� OMMO � P � PN �F

jÉÇáÅ~ä kìêëáåÖ ^ääáÉÇ=eÉ~äíÜ líÜÉêë qçí~ä
�� �� �� ! �� ==================��
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Resource Utilisation by Hospital Clusters and
Other Financial Information
�� !"#$%&'()*+#,

Cluster Resource Utilisation
�� �� !=E�� F

Hong Kong East Cluster   �� !"#$ 3,199.2

Hong Kong West Cluster   �� !"#$ 3,830.5

Kowloon East Cluster   �� !"#$ 2,721.3

Kowloon Central Cluster   �� !"#$ 3,944.4

Kowloon West Cluster   �� !"#$ 6,762.1

New Territories East Cluster   �� !"#$ 4,815.9

New Territories West Cluster   �� !"#$ 3,169.9

Hospital Authority Head Office   �� !"#$ 324.6

Others *   �� G 1,709.6

Total Resource Utilisation   �� !"# 30,477.5

Appendix 13 ����
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Analysis of Hospital / Clinic Fees and Charges
�� !"#$%&

The charges for hospital services provided by the Hospital Authority are levied in accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette and
are recognised as income in the Statement of Income and Expenditure when services are provided.

Hospital fees and charges that are uncollectible are written off in the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.  In addition,
provision is also made for those outstanding hospital fees and charges as at the financial year-end.  The amount of provision for
doubtful debts in financial year 2001/2002 is HK$41,979,000 (2001: HK$29,079,000).  Such provision is assessed based on both the
aging as well as the recoverability rate of outstanding hospital fees and charges as at the financial year-end.

�� !"#$%&�'()*+,-./01&23452*67()$%8*9:;<&2=>?4@AB2CDEF2G&3
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012 345#$6(789:;%<=>�?@ABC. OMMN � OMMO�� !"#$%
�� ! QNIVTVIMMM ��OMMN�� !" OVIMTVIMMM���� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345!6789:;<=>?
�� !"

The analysis of the hospital/clinic fees and charges of the Hospital Authority is as follows:
�� !"��#$%&'()*+,-.

2001 / 2002 2000 / 2001

HK’000 HK’000 (%) HK’000 HK’000 (%)
�� ! �� ! �� ! �� !

Net hospital/clinic fees and charges 754,823 (68.3%) 735,270 (68.8%)
�� !"#$%&'

Hospital/clinic fees written-off and
changes in provision for doubtful debts
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./ 01

- Actual write-off 13,786 23,749
�� !"#$

- Increase / (Decrease) in provision 12,900 (5,456)
�� !"#$%&'E��F

26,686 (2.4%) 18,293 (1.7%)

Waiver of hospital/clinic fees for:
�� !"#$%&'()*

- Entitled Persons * 304,477 (27.5%) 299,778 (28.0%)
�� !"# =G

- Non-Entitled Persons * 20,180 (1.8%) 16,158 (1.5%)
�� !"#$ =G

Total hospital/clinic fees and charges 1,106,166 (100%) 1,069,499 (100%)
�� !"#$%&'

*Entitled Persons refer to those patients holding the Hong Kong Identity Cards and any other patients are classified as
  Non-Entitled Persons.
G=�� !"#$%&'()*+,-"./0-"123�� !"#4
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Hospital Authority Training and Development Expenditure 2001/2002
OMMNLOMMO�� !"#$%&'()*+

Hospital / Institution Amount
�� !" ��

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital   �� !"#$%&'( $716,554

Bradbury Hospice   �� !"#$ $76,274

HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service   �� !"#$%&'() $119,521

Cheshire Home (Chung Hom Kok)   �� !"#$% $56,590

Caritas Medical Centre   �� ! $798,248

Castle Peak Hospital   �� ! $285,866

Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay   �� !"#$%&'()* $68,913

TWGHs Fung Yiu King Hospital   �� !"#$%! $92,538

Grantham Hospital   �� !" $201,850

Haven of Hope Hospital   �� ! $165,766

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital   �� !"# $15,742

Hong Kong Eye Hospital   �� !"# $200,582

Kwai Chung Hospital   �� ! $780,908

Kowloon Hospital   �� ! $566,715

Kwong Wah Hospital   �� ! $1,080,961

MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre   �� !"# $125,843

North District Hospital & Fanling Hospital  �� !"#$ ! $952,421

Nam Long Hospital   �� ! $44,589

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital   �� ! $67,684

Princess Margaret Hospital   �� !" $1,346,496

Pok Oi Hospital   �� ! $137,916

Prince of Wales Hospital   �� !"#$ $1,686,834

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital   �� !"#$%&'( $1,921,329

Queen Elizabeth Hospital   �� !"# $4,866,544

Queen Mary Hospital   �� ! $3,125,318

Rehabaid Centre   �� !"#$%& $36,219

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals   �� !"#$%& $406,639

Cheshire Home (Shatin)   �� !"#$ $23,055

Shatin Hospital   �� ! $202,777

St John Hospital   �� ! $54,173

Siu Lam Hospital   �� ! $25,925

The Hong Kong Tuberculosis, Chest and Heart Diseases Association   �� !"#$%&'( $5,250
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Hospital / Institution Amount
�� !" ��

Tuen Mun Hospital   �� ! $1,516,766

Tai Po Hospital   �� ! $366,720

Tung Wah Eastern Hospital   ��� $253,296

Tung Wah Hospital   �� ! $227,839

Tsan Yuk Hospital   �� ! $253,093

United Christian Hospital   �� !"#$ $1,858,320

Wong Chuk Hang Hospital   �� !" $42,970

TWGH Wong Tai Sin Hospital   �� !" $162,237

Yan Chai Hospital   �� ! $513,571

HA Head Office   �� !"#$ $1,623,114

Total  =�� $27,073,965

Central Programmes Amount
�� ! ��

Central sponsorship   �� !"# $1,461,718

Consultants’ Continuous Education  �� !"#$%& $1,123,325

Commissioned Training   �� !"# $5,556,218

IANS’ Commissioned Training & Echancement Programmes   �� !"#$%&'( !)* $633,464

Management & Staff Development Programmes   �� !"#$%& $1,937,269

Vocational Skills Training for Supporting & Clerical Staff   �� !"#$%#&'()* $968,249

Total  =�� $11,680,242
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Capital Works Summary - 2001/2002
OMMNLOMMO�� !"#

Institution Project
�� ��

Section 1 - Major Projects Under Construction
�� !"#$%&'(

Hong Kong
��

Various Hospitals Hospital Improvements 07/98 07/02 196.057
�� ! Stage III - 8 Hospitals (DKCH, GH,

KWH, NLH, OLMH, TWH, UCH, YCH)
�� !"#$ f f f �� U �� 
�� !"#$%&'()*+,'()
�� !"#$ !"%& !"'� !"
�� !"#$%&'#$(

Various Hospitals Hospital Improvements 06/98 12/02 122.026
�� ! Stage IV - 13 Hospitals

(CPH, FH, KH, KCH, LCKH, PMH, PWH,
QEH, QMH, SJH, TSKH, TYH, TMH)
�� !"#$ fs �� NP �� 
�� !"#$%!"#&'!"#
�� !"#$% !"&'( !"
�� !"#$%&'()#$%
�� !"#$ !"%&' !"
�� !"#$ !%

Maclehose Medical Refurbishment 03/98 09/01 56.630
Rehabilitation Centre ��
�� !"#

Queen Mary Hospital Relocation of Obstetrics & Neonatal 03/00 06/02 78.660
�� ! services from TYH - renovation of wards K6, K9, K20

�� !"#$%&'()*+,-.
�� hS � hV � hOM��

Ruttonjee Hospital Relocation of Tang Shiu Kin Hospital’s 01/01 03/03 153.530
�� !" Accident & Emergency Department

�� !"#$%&'

Kowloon
��

Caritas Medical Centre Redevelopment Phase I 01/98 01/02 794.200
�� ! �� !"

Kowloon Hospital Refurbishment & Redevelopment Phase I 03/98 02/02 929.311
�� ! �� !"#$%

Kwong Wah Hospital Provision of Rehabilitative 08/00 03/04 16.000
�� ! Environment for Patients and Provision

of Covered Walkway
�� !"#$%&'()*+, -

Planned/Actual Start
Date

�� 
�� !"#

Planned/Actual
Completion
�� 

�� !"#

Current Estimate
(in million)
�� !
E�� F

Appendix 14 ����
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New Territories
��

Tseung Kwan O Hospital District hospital with about 400 beds and 04/96 04/99 2,094.290
�� !" ambulatory care centre

�� !" QMM�� !"#$%&'()*

Castle Peak Hospital Redevelopment Phase II 04/98 08/05 1,194.005
�� ! �� !"#$

Princess Margaret Hospital Hospital with 250 infirmary beds 10/98 07/00 592.575
Lai King Building �� ! ORM=�� !"#$%
�� !"#$%

Tuen Mun Hospital Tuen Mun Polyclinic - Relocation 06/98 03/01 519.660
�� ! �� !"#$%&

Prince of Wales Hospital Trauma Centre 08/97 12/01 94.140
�� !"#$ �� !

Pok Oi Hospital Redevelopment & Expansion into 622 bed 06/00 12/06 2,128.955
�� ! acute hospital

�� !"#$% SOO�� !"#$%

Sub-Total 8,970.039
��

Section 2 - Major Projects Planned (Funds Earmarked)
�� !"#$%&'()*E�� !F

Hong Kong
��

Tang Siu Kin Hospital Remodelling into an Ambulatory Care Centre 01/03 12/04 235.205
�� !" �� !"#$%&

New Territories
��

Caritas Medical Centre Redevelopment Phase II 1,672.640
�� ! �� !"#$

Princess Margaret Hospital Radiotherapy Centre and Accident & 589.573
�� �� Emergency Department

�� !"#$%&'

Tuen Mun Hospital Redevelopment of Staff Quarters 1,297.301
�� ! �� !"#

Sub-Total 3,794.719
��

Total 12,764.758
��

Institution Project
�� ��

Section 1 - Major Projects Under Construction
�� !"#$%&'(

Planned/Actual Start
Date

�� 
�� !"#

Planned/Actual
Completion
�� 

�� !"#

Current Estimate
(in million)
�� !
E�� F
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(I) Health Improvement for the healthcare system in Hong Kong (1)   (for reference only) For the calendar year ended December 2000
�� !"#$%&'() =ENF=E�� ! F �� OMMM � NO�� !"#

(i) Natality   �� 

• Life expectancy at birth (year)   �� !"#$%�� !
– Male  � 77.0
– Female   � 82.2

• Life expectancy at age 65   SR�� !"#$�� !
– Male  � 16.5
– Female   � 20.1

(ii)Mortality   �� 

• Still birth rate (per 1000 births)   �� �� NMMM�� !"# 5.6

• Perinatal mortality rate (per 1000 births)   �� !"#�� NMMM�� !"# 6.8

• Infant mortality rate (per 1000 live births)   �� !"�� NMMM�� !"#$% 3.0

• Standardised death rate from all causes (per 1000 population aged 15-64) 1.8
�� !�"#$%&'()�� NMMM � NRJSQ�� !

• Standardised death rate from all causes (per 1000 population aged 65 and over) 34.6
�� !�"#$%&'()�� NMMM � SQ�� !

• Crude death rates (per 1000 population) for selected cause of death :
�� !�"#$%&'()�� NMMM ��

– Malignant neoplasm   �� 1.7
– Heart diseases, including hypertension heart diseases   �� !"#$%&�� 0.8
– Cerebrovascular diseases   �� ! 0.5

• Suicide rates (Death cases per 1000 population )   �� �� NMMM �� !�"#
– Up to age 64   SQ�� ! 0.1
– Age 65 and above   SR�� ! 0.3

• Death rate from accidents (per 1000 population)   �� !"�� NMMM �� 0.1

Performance Indicators of the Hospital Authority
�� !"#$%&'()

The performance indicators presented are based on the Hospital Authority performance measurement framework which covers six
broad objective areas applicable to the entire healthcare system.  These include health improvement, fair access, effective delivery of
appropriate healthcare, efficiency, patient/carer experience and health outcomes.  For health improvement, it is recognized that the
major contributing factors are health promotion, education, social welfare, environment, etc., where the Authority is only one of the
contributors along with other government departments. It is included in the performance measurement framework to provide users
background information on the health status of the community.
�� !"#$%&'()* !+,-./0123456789:;<=9&>?@-A#BCDE89BC$FGHIJKL
�� !"#$%&'()*+,"$-"./0123456789$:;78<=�>?@ABC9DEFG78HI"JK"
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./01&234,56789:;<=>?@ABC67DEFBGHIJK&LI4MNO
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0

Appendix 15 ����
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(II) Fair Access (1)   �� !"#=ENF

(i) Access to professional services in Hospital Authority
�� !"#$%&'()*+

• No. of registered doctors per 1000 population 0.6 0.6
� NMMM�� !�"

• No. of qualified nurses per 1000 population 2.7 2.8
� NMMM�� !"#$�%

• No. of allied health professionals per 1000 population 0.7 0.7
� NMMM �� !"#�$%&

(ii)Access to public hospital services   �� !"#$%&'()*

• No. of beds per 1000 population   �� !"#$%
– General   �� 3.0 3.0
– Infirmary (per 1000 population aged 65 and over) 3.4 3.7
====�� �� NMMM � SR �� !"#$
– Mentally ill   �� 0.8 0.7
– Mentally handicapped   �� 0.1 0.1

======(iii)Access to ambulatory service   �� !"#$%&'()*
• No. of specialist outpatient doctor sessions per 1000 population 61.3 63.4
� NMMM �� !"#$%&'

• No. of psychiatric day places per 100,000 population 9.4 9.9
� NM�� !"#$%&'

• No. of geriatric day places per 100,000 population aged 65 and over 70.8 68.3
� NM �� SR �� !"#$%"&'()*

======(iv) Access to community services   �� !"#$%&'(
• No. of nurses for Community Nursing Service per 100,000 population 5.0 5.2
� NM �� !"#$%&�'

• No. of nurses for Community Psychiatric Nursing Service per 100,000 population 1.2 1.3
� NM�� !"#$%&'()�*

(III)   Effective Delivery of Appropriate Healthcare====�� !"#$%&'(

• Unplanned readmission rate within 28 days (including day patients)
OU�� !"#$%&'�� !"#$%
– General   �� 7.1% 7.2%
– Mentally ill   �� 3.7% 3.6%

• Accident & emergency admission rate (to own hospital)    �� !"#�� !"# 21.8% 21.7%
(as % of accident & emergency first attendance)   �� !"#$%&'$()*+

• Accident & emergency re-attendance rate (<48 hours)   �� !"#$�YQU�� 3.3% 3.4%
(as %of accident & emergency first attendance)   �� !"#$%&'$()*+

For the fiscal year
ended March 2002
�� OMMO � P�
�� !"#$

For the fiscal year
ended March 2001
�� OMMN � P�
�� !"#$
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EfsFEfficiency (1)   �� = ENF

(i) Utilisation of services  �� !

Accident and emergency �� 
• Accident & emergency attendance per 1000 population   � NMMM�� !"#$% 353.2 366.4

Inpatient services �� !
• Inpatient & daypatient discharges & deaths per 1000 population 171.4 175.5
� NMMM�� !"#$%�&!"'(�)

• Bed occupancy rate (inpatient only) 84.6% 84.4%
�� !"�� !"#$%

• Average length of stay (days) (inpatient only)(2)   �� !"#�� !"#$%
=EOF

– General   �� 6.6 6.6
– Infirmary   �� 112.0 119.5
– Mentally ill   �� 178.7 140.4
– Mentally handicapped   �� 326.5 329.3
– Overall   �� 10.0 9.3

• Day patients as % of total discharges and deaths
�� !"#$%&'!()*+ 24.4% 25.5%

Outpatient services �� !
• General outpatient attendances per 1000 population
� NMMM�� !"#$%$�&

• Specialist outpatient attendance (clinical) per 1000 population
� NMMM�� !"#�� !"#�� !

• Specialist outpatient attendances (integrated clinics) per 1000 population
� NMMM�� !"#�� !"#�� !

• Specialist outpatient attendances (allied health services) per 1000 population
� NMMM�� !"#�� !"#$%�� !

Community services �� !
• No. of home visits by community nurses (per 1000 population)
�� !"#$%�� NMMM ��

• No. of home visits by community psychiatric nurses
�� !"#$%&'(�� NMMM ��

• No. of psychiatric day hospital attendances (per 1000 population)
� NMMM�� !"#$%&'(�)

• No. of geriatric day hospital attendances (per 1000 population aged 65 and over)
� NMMM � SR �� !"#$%"&'()*+,"-

• No. of outreach services attendances by Community Psychiatric Teams
(per 1000 population)
�� !"#$%&'()*�� NMMM ��

• No. of outreach services attendances by Psychogeriatric
Teams (per 1000 population aged 65 and over)
�� !"#$%&'()*�� NMMM � SR�� !"#$

119.6

849.0

13.2

352.1

93.0

7.1

23.7

164.5

1.3

41.9

128.9

863.2

21.3

356.2

99.6

7.9

26.3

160.9

2.5

48.6

For the fiscal year
ended March 2002
�� OMMO � P �
�� !"#$

For the fiscal year
ended March 2001
�� OMMN � P�
�� !"#$
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For the fiscal year
ended March 2002
�� OMMO � P �
�� !"#$

For the fiscal year
ended March 2001
�� OMMN � P �
�� !"#$

• No. of outreach services attendances by Community Geriatric Assessment Teams 351.4 442.8
(per 1000 population aged 65 and over)
�� !"#$%&'()*+�� NMMM � SR�� !"#$

• No. of elderly cases assessed for infirmary care services by 2.9 3.4
Community Geriatric Assessment Teams
(per 1000 population aged 65 and over)
�� !"#$%&'( !)*+,-.
�� NMMM � SR �� !"#$

(ii)Maximising use of resources
�� !

Unit costs (based on total HA costs) ($)
�� !�� !"#$%&'()�� 

• Cost per patient discharged (including daypatients)
�� !"#$%�� !"#$%

– General   �� 15,985 16,390
– Infirmary   �� 189,250 190,720
– Mentally ill   �� 136,042 142,400
– Mentally handicapped   �� 499,657 495,920

• Cost per specialist outpatient attendance   �� !"#$% 661 740

• Cost per accident & emergency attendance   �� !"#$%& 571 580

• Cost per home visit by community nurse  �� !"#$%&' 346 340

• Cost per home visit by community psychiatric nurse   �� !"#$%&'()* 1,041 1,050

• Cost per psychiatric day hospital attendance   �� !"#$%&'()* 893 880

• Cost per geriatric day hospital attendance   �� !"#$%&'()* 1,513 1,480

EsF Patient / Carer Experience
�� !"#$%

(i) Waiting times
�� !

• % of accident & emergency cases within the target waiting time
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./
– Triage I (critical cases – 0 minute) 100% 100%
�� !" f��� !"=J=M�� 

– Triage II (emergency - < 15 minutes) 97% 98%
�� !" ff ��� !"=J=YNR�� 

– Triage III (urgent cases - <30 minutes) 90% 91%
�� !" fff ��� !"=J=YPM�� 

• Median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinic (weeks) 4 5
�� !"#$%&'()*+�� !

• Average queuing time for consultation at specialist clinic (minutes) < 60 < 60
�� !"#$%!&'�� !
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Age Group Mid 2000 Mid 2001
�� ! OMMM �� OMMM ��

0-14 1,151,500 1,130,400

15-64 4,907,000 4,983,500

65+ 744,400 771,400

All Age Group@�� !"# 6,802,900 6,885,400

Note1 : Figures for 00/01and 01/02 may be different from those presented in Annual Report 00/01 and Annual Plan 02/03  because
of the availability of up-to-date  benchmark population data from Census and Statistics Department based on the results of the 2001
Population Census. Population includes usual residents, mobile residents and visitors.
� N�� !"#$% OMMN�� !"#$%&'()*� +,-.%/0 MMLMN � MNLMO�� !"#$%& MMLMN��� ! MOLMP
�� !"#$%&'()*+,-./012345623789)

Note2 : For general and overall inpatient service, average length of stay refers to the sum of length of stay of discharged inpatients
divided by the corresponding number of inpatients discharged. For mentally ill, mentally handicapped and infirmary specialty, the
statistics on average length of stay is based on number of patients treated at specialty level.

�� !"#$%&'()*+,&'-./012'34*&'56789:2'46;��<=">?@"#AB"34*+,&'-./01
�� !"#$%!&'()*+,-�./$#'0

(ii)Patient satisfaction
�� !"#

• No. of patient appreciation per 1000 discharges and deaths 23.2 22.0
� NMMM�� !"#$%&'$()%*

• No. of patient complaints per 1000 discharges and deaths 1.4 1.3
� NMMM�� !"#$%&'$()%*

EsfFHealth Outcomes
�� !

• Number of neonatal deaths per 1000 live births in Hospital Authority hospital 2.1 1.7
�� �!" NMMM�� !"#$%&'"#$()*+

For the fiscal year
ended March 2002
�� OMMO � P�
�� !"#$

For the fiscal year
ended March 2001
�� OMMN � P �
�� !"#$

@ may not added up to total due to rounding
]�� !"#$%&'()*+,"-./012345"-,678
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Auditors’ Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority

We have audited the financial statements on pages 118 to 155 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of the Hospital Authority and auditors

The Hospital Authority Ordinance requires the Hospital Authority to prepare financial statements. In
preparing financial statements which are intended to give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report
our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants.  An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements.  It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Hospital Authority in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Hospital Authority's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.  We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Hospital
Authority as at 31 March, 2002 and of the deficit and its cash flows for the year then ended.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

HONG KONG

26 September, 2002
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Notes 2002 2001

ASSETS HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,458,020 2,517,836
Loans receivable 4 65,921 58,931
Fixed income instruments 5 9,831 131,843

2,533,772 2,708,610

Current Assets
Inventories 469,674 486,178
Loans receivable 4 3,469 2,148
Accounts receivable and other current assets

[net of provision for doubtful debts of
HK$41,979,000 (2001: HK$29,079,000)] 297,112 303,985

Deposits and prepayments 149,726 289,099
Fixed income instruments 5 131,843 199,044
Cash and bank balances 6 6,227,963 5,922,152

7,279,787 7,202,606

Current Liabilities
Creditors and accrued charges 7 2,184,722 1,856,996
Deposits received 41,535 22,992

2,226,257 1,879,988

Net Current Assets 5,053,530 5,322,618

NET ASSETS 7,587,302 8,031,228

RESERVES
Designated funds 8 4,314,057 4,412,777
Revenue reserve 815,225 1,100,614

5,129,282 5,513,391

DEFERRED INCOME 9
Capital subventions 1,390,204 1,428,905
Capital donations 1,067,816 1,088,932

2,458,020 2,517,837

TOTAL RESERVES AND
DEFERRED INCOME 7,587,302 8,031,228

Mr Anthony T.Y. Wu
Chairman
Finance Committee

Dr William Ho, JP
Chief Executive

eçëéáí~ä=̂ ìíÜçêáíó
_~ä~åÅÉ=pÜÉÉí

31 March, 2002
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�� !"
�� !"
���� !"!#$%

�� 
�� !"#$

�� !"
�� !

�� OMMO OMMN

�� �� ! �� !

�� !"
�� !"#$% 3 2,458,020 2,517,836
�� ! 4 65,921 58,931
�� !"# 5 9,831 131,843

2,533,772 2,708,610

�� !
�� 469,674 486,178
�� ! 4 3,469 2,148
�� !"#$%&'(
====x�� !"#$% QNIVTVIMMM �
==��  !"��� OVIMTVIMMM ��z 297,112 303,985
�� !"#$ 149,726 289,099
�� !"# 5 131,843 199,044
�� !"#$ 6 6,227,963 5,922,152

7,279,787 7,202,606

�� !
�� !"#$% 7 2,184,722 1,856,996
�� ! 41,535 22,992

2,226,257 1,879,988

�� !"# 5,053,530 5,322,618

�� ! 7,587,302 8,031,228

��
�� ! 8 4,314,057 4,412,777
�� ! 815,225 1,100,614

5,129,282 5,513,391

�� ! 9
�� ! 1,390,204 1,428,905
�� ! 1,067,816 1,088,932

2,458,020 2,517,837

�� !"#$%& 7,587,302 8,031,228
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Notes 2002 2001

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Income
Recurrent Government Subvention 10 29,277,564 27,897,596
Capital Government Subvention 249,800 261,485
Hospital/clinic fees and charges 11 781,509 753,563
Donations 285 478
Transfers from :

Designated donation fund 8 105,780 94,859
Capital subventions 9 610,704 774,731
Capital donations 9 86,689 95,411

Investment income 123,352 210,813
Other income 205,617 247,349

31,441,300 30,336,285

Expenditure Utilising Current Year's Income
Staff costs 14 (25,064,137) (23,574,339)
Medical supplies and equipment (2,570,467) (2,372,795)
Building projects funded by Government

through the HA but not owned by HA [note 2 (e)] (249,800) (261,485)
Operating lease expenses - office premises (7,856) (8,093)
Depreciation 3 (692,015) (855,653)
Other operating expenses (3,084,266) (2,952,149)

(31,668,541) (30,024,514)

Expenditure Utilising Previous Years' Unspent Budget 12 (58,148) (55,461)

(31,726,689) (30,079,975)

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (285,389) 256,310

Revenue reserve as at beginning of year 1,100,614 844,304

Revenue reserve as at end of year 815,225 1,100,614

There were no recognised gains or losses other than the (deficit) / surplus for the year.

Hospital Authority
Statement of Income and Expenditure
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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Notes 2002 2001

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Net Cash (Outflow) / Inflow from Operating Activities 13 (469,434) 221,865

Return on Investments
Interest received 123,352 210,813

Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (637,576) (725,058)
Net increase in bank deposits with maturity

over three months (76,962) (120,209)
Net decrease in fixed income instruments 189,213 323,488

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (525,325) (521,779)

Net Cash Outflow before Financing (871,407) (89,101)

Financing Activities
Designated Donation Fund 8 (12,472) 22,827
Home Loan Interest Subsidy Fund 8 479,798 282,111
Death and Disability Fund 8 29,710 147,927
North District Hospital Fund 8 59,550 (22,900)
HA Building Fund 8 (153) (3,091)
Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund 8 (93,753) (220,933)
Capital subventions 9 572,003 597,085
Capital donations 9 65,573 127,973

Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 1,100,256 930,999

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 228,849 841,898

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 3,917,653 3,075,755

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 4,146,502 3,917,653

Represented by
Cash and bank balances 6  6,227,963 5,922,152
Less: bank deposits with maturity over three months (2,081,461) (2,004,499)

4,146,502 3,917,653

Hospital Authority
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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1. The Hospital Authority

The Hospital Authority Ordinance provides the Hospital Authority ("HA") with the powers to manage
and control the delivery of public hospital services in Hong Kong.

The HA came to an arrangement with the Hong Kong Government ("the Government") (detailed in a
draft Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement, "MAA") whereby the Government has passed the
management and control of the ex-Government hospitals ("Schedule 1 Hospitals") to the HA. Under this
arrangement, certain specified assets have been transferred to the HA.  The ownership of other assets has
been retained by the Government.

The HA has also entered into agreements with the individual governing bodies of the ex-subvented
hospitals ("Schedule 2 Hospitals") which allowed the HA to assume ownership of some operating assets as
at 1 December, 1991 and to manage and control other assets, the ownership of which remains with the
individual governing bodies.

The HA assumed full responsibility for all operating and capital commitments outstanding as at
1 December, 1991, except for the capital works projects funded under the Capital Works Reserve Fund of
the Government, and for the management of the hospital operations thereafter.

At the balance sheet date, the HA had under its management and control the following hospitals and
institutions:

Head Office

Schedule 1 Hospitals and Schedule 2 Hospitals:

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice
Caritas Medical Centre
Castle Peak Hospital
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin
Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at Sandy Bay
Fanling Hospital
Grantham Hospital
Haven of Hope Hospital
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
Hong Kong Eye Hospital
Kowloon Hospital
Kwai Chung Hospital
Kwong Wah Hospital
Lai Chi Kok Hospital
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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1. The Hospital Authority (cont’d)

Schedule 1 Hospitals and Schedule 2 Hospitals: (cont’d)

Nam Long Hospital
North District Hospital
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
Pok Oi Hospital
Prince of Wales Hospital
Princess Margaret Hospital
Queen Elizabeth Hospital
Queen Mary Hospital
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
Shatin Hospital
Siu Lam Hospital
St. John Hospital
Tai Po Hospital
Tsan Yuk Hospital
Tseung Kwan O Hospital
Tuen Mun Hospital
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital
Tung Wah Hospital
United Christian Hospital
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital
Yan Chai Hospital

Standalone Specialist Clinics:

David Trench Rehabilitation Centre
East Kowloon Polyclinic
Ngau Tau Kok Jockey Club Clinic
Pamela Youde Polyclinic
Southorn Centre
Tang Chi Ngong Specialist Clinic
Tuen Mun Polyclinic
Yaumatei Jockey Club Polyclinic
Yaumatei Specialist Clinic Extension
Yuen Long Yung Fung Shee Ophthalmic Centre
Yung Fung Shee Memorial Centre

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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1. The Hospital Authority (cont’d)

General Outpatient Clinics:

Cheung Sha Wan Jockey Club General Outpatient Clinic
(under Caritas Medical Centre)

East Kowloon General Outpatient Clinic
(under Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital)

Sai Ying Pun Jockey Club General Outpatient Clinic
(under Queen Mary Hospital)

Tseung Kwan O Jockey Club General Outpatient Clinic
(under Tseung Kwan O Hospital)

Yan Oi General Outpatient Clinic
(under Tuen Mun Hospital)

Other Institutions :

HACare
Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
Rehabaid Centre
Other clinics and associated units

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by the HA in preparing these financial statements conform
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong as appropriate to Government subvented
and not-for-profit organisations.  The more significant accounting policies are set out below:

(a) Basis of presentation

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those assets owned by the HA and the
liabilities assumed by the HA upon the integration with both the Schedule 1 Hospitals and Schedule 2
Hospitals.  Those assets under the management and control of the HA, but not owned by the HA, are
not accounted for in these financial statements.

The financial statements of the HA include the income and expenditure of the Head Office, all Schedule
1 Hospitals and Schedule 2 Hospitals, Specialist Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and other
institutions (the "Group") for the financial year ended 31 March, 2002. Intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on combination.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002



129

NK �� !"E�F

�� !""#�

�� !"#$%&'(()

�� !"#$%&

' �� !"#$%%&

�� !"#$%&

' �� !"#$%&'(()

�� !"#$%&

' �� !"#$%&'(()

�� !"#$%&'

' �� !"#$$%

�� !"#$%&

'

�� !"

�� 

�� !"#$%&'()

�� !"#$%&

�� !"#$%&'

OK �� !"#

' �� !"#$%&'()*+,-./0123456789:;<=>?,@2ABCDEFGHI-01JKL

�� !"#$%&'()*

' E~F �� !"

�� !"#$%&'" N�� !" O�� !"#�$%&'()*+,&-.)/01(234�� !"#$

�� !�"#$%&'�()*+,-."$/012345678

' �� !"#$%&'()*++*,-.-/012!"3,456789:;<=% N�� !" O�� !"#

�� !"#$$�%&'()�� !"#�� !"#$%&'�()!*+,-./01234$

'

�� !"
�� !"#
�� !! "#$#%&'



130

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(b)  Adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting Practice

In the current year, the HA has adopted for the first time the following new and revised Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAPs") issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 14 (Revised) Leases

SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

SSAP 31 Impairment of assets

SSAP 35 Accounting for government grants and disclosure of
government assistance

Except for SSAP 14 (Revised) "Leases", the adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has not resulted in
changes to the HA’s accounting policies that have affected the amounts reported for the current or prior
periods.  However, the new and revised SSAPs have introduced additional and revised disclosure
requirements which have been adopted in these financial statements.  Comparative amounts for the prior
year have been restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

Leases

SSAP 14 (Revised) has introduced some amendments to the basis of accounting for operating leases, and
to the disclosures of HA’s leasing arrangements.  Specifically, an analysis of total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases is required rather than the annual commitment which
was disclosed under the old SSAP 14.

(c)  Recognition of income

Recurrent grants are recognised on an accrual basis. Non-recurrent grants that are spent on expenditure
which does not meet the capitalisation criteria as set out in note 2(e)(i) are recognised when incurred.

Hospital fees and charges are recognised when services are provided.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(c)  Recognition of income (cont’d)

Designated donations are recognised as income when the amounts have been received or are receivable
from the donors and the related expenditure is charged to the income and expenditure account. Other
donation income is recognised upon receipt of non-designated cash or donations-in-kind not meeting
the capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(e)(i).

Transfers from capital subventions and capital donations are recognised when depreciation and net book
value of assets disposed are charged to the income and expenditure account.

Transfers from the designated donation fund are recognised when the designated donation fund is utilised and
the expenditure does not meet the capitalisation policy as set out in note 2(e)(i).

Investment income from bank deposits is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

(d)  Donations

(i) Donated assets

Donations for specific assets ("donated assets") with a value not exceeding $100,000 each are recorded
as income and expenditure in the year of receipt of the assets.

Donated assets with a value of over $100,000 each are capitalised on receipt of the assets. The
amount of the donated assets is credited to the deferred income – capital donations account. Each
year, an amount equal to the depreciation charge for these assets and the net book value of assets
disposed is transferred from the deferred income – capital donations account and credited to the
income and expenditure account.

(ii) Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use are accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the funds
are used in the manner prescribed by the donor, they are accounted for as expenditure of the
designated donation fund and, in the case of capital expenditure, in accordance with the policy for
donated assets outlined above.

Non-specified donations for general operating purposes are recorded as donations in the income
and expenditure account in the year of receipt.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

(i) Effective 1 December, 1991, the following types of assets owned by the HA have been capitalised:

Building projects costing $250,000 or more;
All other assets costing $100,000 or more on an individual basis; and

                  Computer software and systems including related development costs, and other intangible assets
costing $250,000 or more on an individual basis.

The calculation of the cost of the property, plant and equipment is set out in note 2(f ).

(ii) For properties which are funded by the Government through the HA but are owned by an
ex-subvented governing body, the associated expenditure is charged to the income and expenditure
account in the year as incurred. Under the agreements with ex-subvented governing bodies, the
ownership of building projects, although funded by the Government through the HA, is vested
with the governing bodies. The same accounting policy has been adopted for the North District
Hospital, the Tseung Kwan O Hospital and the HA Building, which are also funded by the
Government through the HA. Properties donated to the HA with values exceeding $250,000 are
capitalised and the corresponding amounts are credited to the deferred income – capital donations
account.

(iii) For expenditure on subsequent improvement to properties the ownership of which has not been
vested with the HA, the amount spent has been capitalised only if the improvement does not form
part of the properties and can be re-used by the HA when re-located. Otherwise, the expenditure is
charged to the income and expenditure account in the year as incurred.

(iv) Expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles, computer software and systems are
capitalised (subject to the minimum expenditure limits set out in Note 2(e)(i) above)  and the
corresponding amounts are credited to the deferred income – capital subventions and capital
donations accounts for capital expenditure funded by the Government and donations respectively.

(v) Property, plant and equipment transferred from the hospitals to the HA at 1 December, 1991 was
recorded at nil value.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(f) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income and expenditure
account.

The historical cost of assets acquired and the value of donated assets received by the HA since
1 December, 1991 are depreciated using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Over the life of the lease to which
Leasehold improvements the improvement relates

Buildings 20 - 50 years

Improvements 3 - 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 -  7 years

Computer software and systems 1 -  3 years

Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset is placed into commission.

(g) Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis.

Fixed income instruments are stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amounts.  The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the acquisition of
fixed income instruments is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yield on the investment.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(h) Inventories

Inventories, which comprise medical and general consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost or
net realisable value.  Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Provision is made for obsolete
and slow-moving items.

Net realisable value is determined with reference to the replacement cost.

(i) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to HA’s defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall
due.  Payments made to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the HA’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.  The retirement benefit costs charged in the income and
expenditure account represent the contributions payable in respect of the current year to the HA's
defined contribution retirement benefit plan and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

(j) Government Grants

Subvention grants approved for the year less amounts spent on property, plant and equipment during
the year are classified as recurrent grants. Government subventions of a capital nature ("capital
subventions") are credited to the deferred income - capital subventions account and the corresponding
amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment as set out in note 2(e)(iv). This includes
capital expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles, computer software and systems.
Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation charge for the assets and net book value of assets
disposed is transferred from the deferred income – capital subventions account and credited to the
income and expenditure account.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Furniture, Capital Computer
Buildings & Fixtures & Motor Expenditure Software

Improvements Equipment Vehicles in Progress & Systems Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost:
At 1 April, 2001  958,870 3,859,274 101,397 103,266 1,767,407 6,790,214
Reclassifications  82,289 5,416 - (126,553) 38,848 -
Additions 6,921 353,190 7,991 83,509 185,965 637,576
Disposals (989) (59,446) - - (2,055) (62,490 )

At 31 March, 2002  1,047,091 4,158,434 109,388 60,222 1,990,165 7,365,300

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 April, 2001 88,929 2,762,066 85,826 - 1,335,557 4,272,378
Reclassifications  - 1,827 - - (1,827) -
Provided for the year 22,197 438,315 7,010 - 224,493 692,015
Eliminated on disposals (989) (54,813) - - (1,311) (57,113 )

At 31 March, 2002 110,137 3,147,395 92,836 - 1,556,912 4,907,280

Net book values:
At 31 March, 2002 936,954 1,011,039 16,552 60,222 433,253 2,458,020

At 31 March, 2001 869,941 1,097,208 15,571 103,266 431,850 2,517,836

4. Loans Receivable

Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy Scheme are offered downpayment loans
for the purchase of their residential properties. The repayment period of the loans is the lesser of the mortgage
life or 20 years. As at the balance sheet date, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff which are
fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows:

2002 2001

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Repayable within one year 3,469 2,148
Repayable after one year 65,921 58,931

69,390 61,079

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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5. Fixed Income Instruments

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong Dollar Bonds and Exchange Fund Notes which are
generally held by the HA to maturity. The instruments presented as non-current assets are instruments
which mature more than one year after the balance sheet date. Instruments which mature within one year
of the balance sheet date are presented as current assets. As at the balance sheet date, the fixed income
instruments held by the HA are as follows:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$'000

Mature within one year 131,843 199,044
Mature more than one year 9,831 131,843

141,674 330,887

6. Cash and Bank Balances

The cash and bank balances represent:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash and bank balances 6,230,919 5,932,937
Cash book balance less unpresented cheques (2,956) (10,785)

6,227,963 5,922,152

The cash book balance less unpresented cheques mainly represents cheques issued but not yet presented for
payment. Arrangements have been made with banks to cover all cheques by a transfer of funds from deposit
accounts when they are presented for payment, therefore there was no physical overdraft as at the balance
sheet date.

The HA has available banking facilities totalling HK$300 million (2001: HK$300 million) which at
31 March, 2002 have not been utilised.

7. Creditors and Accrued Charges

Creditors and accrued charges include an accrual for accumulated annual leave of HK$828,994,000
(2001: HK$779,353,000).
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8. Designated Funds

Home Loan North Tseung
Designated Interest Death and District HA Kwan O

Donation Subsidy Disability Hospital Building Hospital
Fund  Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

[Note 2(d)] [Note 15] [Note 16] [Note 17] [Note 18] [Note 19]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance at 1 April, 2000 215,898 2,175,379 679,582 244,075 31,545 860,357 4,206,836
Additions during the year 117,686 873,260 149,892 - - - 1,140,838
Utilisation during the year (94,859) (591,149) (1,965) (22,900) (3,091) (220,933) (934,897)

Balance at 31 March, 2001 238,725 2,457,490 827,509 221,175 28,454 639,424 4,412,777
Additions during the year 93,308 884,122 32,714 - - - 1,010,144
Utilisation during the year (105,780) (404,324) (3,004) (19,850) (153) (14,353) (547,464)
Transfer of funds - - - 79,400 - (79,400)  -
Return of unspent funds
to Government - - - (188,400) - (373,000) (561,400)

Balance at 31 March, 2002 226,253 2,937,288 857,219 92,325 28,301 172,671 4,314,057

9. Deferred Income

Capital Capital
Subventions Donations Total

[Note 2 (j)] [Note 2(d)]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance at 1 April, 2000 1,606,551 1,056,370 2,662,921
Additions during the year 597,085 127,973 725,058
Transfers to income and expenditure account (774,731) (95,411) (870,142)

Balance at 31 March, 2001 1,428,905 1,088,932 2,517,837
Additions during the year 572,003 65,573 637,576
Transfers to income and expenditure account (610,704) (86,689) (697,393)

Balance at 31 March, 2002 1,390,204 1,067,816 2,458,020

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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10. Recurrent Government Subvention

The HA receives annual operating grants from the Government to provide hospital services in
Hong Kong.

The draft MAA, described in Note 1, provides a formula for the clawback of the excess of income over
expenditure in the reporting period.  For the years ended 31 March, 2002 and 2001, no provision for
clawback was required under the terms of the draft MAA.

11. Hospital / Clinic Fees and Charges

The charges for hospital services provided by the HA are levied in accordance with those stipulated in the
Gazette. Since the Gazette stipulates that the medical charges for certain types of patients could be waived,
the hospital/clinic fees and charges recognised as income in the Statement of Income and Expenditure are
stated at net of such waivers. The hospital/clinics fees and charges waived for the financial year ended
31 March, 2002 amounted to HK$324,658,000 (2001: HK$315,936,000).

12. Expenditure Utilising Previous Years’ Unspent Budget

In the year ended 31 March, 2001, certain hospitals' expenditure was less than their budget allocation.  It
is the HA's policy to permit the hospitals to utilise part of their previous years’ unspent budget for specifically
approved purposes in future years.  The expenditure utilising the previous years’ unspent budget amounted
to HK$58,148,000 (2001: HK$55,461,000) during the current financial year which is 0.18%
(2001: 0.18%) of the total expenditure for the current year.
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13. Reconciliation of the (Deficit) / Surplus for the year to Net Cash (Outflow) / Inflow from
Operating Activities

2002 2001
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (285,389) 256,310
Investment income (123,352) (210,813)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,377 14,490
Income transferred from deferred income (697,393) (870,142)
Depreciation 692,015 855,653
Decrease (Increase) in inventories 16,504 (30,612)
Increase in loans receivable (8,311) (27,919)
Decrease in accounts receivable and other current assets 6,873 30,388
Decrease (Increase) in deposits and prepayments 139,373 (27,647)
(Decrease) Increase in creditors and accrued charges (233,674) 225,595
Increase in deposits received 18,543 6,562

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (469,434) 221,865

14. Provident Fund Scheme

Most employees who have opted for the HA terms of employment are eligible to join the HA Provident
Fund Scheme on a non-contributory basis. The Hospital Authority Provident Fund Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation to contributions except that a minimum death
benefit equating to twelve months’ salary applies on the death of a member.  However, when the member’s
account balance is less than his twelve months’ scheme salary, the difference will be contributed by the
Death and Disability Fund of the HA.

Under the scheme, the HA contributes 15% of the employee's salary to the fund.  The percentage of
benefit entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or retirement, increases with the length of
service.

The scheme is managed by a separate board of trustees.

During the year ended 31 March, 2002, the HA contributed to the scheme HK$2,125,698,000
(2001: HK$2,038,560,000), which is included in the staff costs of HK$25,064,137,000
(2001: HK$23,574,339,000).

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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15. Home Loan Interest Subsidy Scheme

The HA offers eligible employees under the scheme an interest subsidy to finance the purchase of a
residence in Hong Kong.  Eligibility under the scheme is primarily determined by the employee's
length of service.

The amount of subsidy generally represents half of the interest rate payable by the eligible employee up to
a maximum of 6% per annum.  However, eligibility and the maximum amount of subsidy are subject to a
number of restrictions as defined in the scheme.

The scheme is funded by the HA through contributions calculated at specific rates based on the total
salaries of staff in the various staff categories.

16. Death and Disability Scheme

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to death and disability benefit cover.  This is
funded by the HA through contributions calculated at specific rates based on the total salaries of staff in
the various staff categories.

17. North District Hospital Fund

During the financial year 1993/94, the Government advanced to the HA a sum of HK$1,690,350,000 for
the construction of the North District Hospital.  The sum is held by the HA in trust for the Government
to meet the construction costs of the project which is managed by the HA as agent for the Government.
During the financial year 1995/96, the Government transferred HK$79,400,000 from this fund to Tseung
Kwan O Hospital Fund. All interest earned from this grant will be repaid annually to the Government.
The hospital was substantially completed and was commissioned in the financial year 1997/98. During
the financial year 2001/02, the amount of HK$79,400,000 previously transferred from Tseung Kwan O
Hospital Fund was fully returned to this fund.  At 31 March, 2002, the fund balance was HK$92,325,000
after deducting the balance payable to the Government of HK$188,400,000. The remaining fund balance
will be used for construction costs and any unspent balance will be repaid to the Government.

18. HA Building Fund

During the financial year 1994/95, the Government advanced to the HA a sum of HK$405,670,000 for
the construction of the HA Building.  This sum is the maximum amount of Government financial support
for the project. Any interest earned from this grant will be treated as the HA's income.  The HA Building
was substantially completed and was commissioned in the financial year 1997/98.  At 31 March, 2002, the
fund balance was HK$28,301,000.  The remaining fund balance will be used for remaining construction
costs and any unspent balance will be repaid to the Government.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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19. Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund

During the financial year 1995/96, the Government advanced HK$2,047,290,000 to the HA and
transferred HK$79,400,000 from North District Hospital Fund for the construction of  Tseung Kwan O
Hospital.  This grant is the maximum amount of financial support from the Government. All interest
earned from this grant is repaid annually to the Government. The hospital was substantially completed
and was commissioned in the financial year 1999/2000. During the financial year 2001/02, the amount
of HK$79,400,000 was returned to North District Hospital Fund. At 31 March, 2002, the fund balance
was HK$172,671,000 after deducting the balance payable to the Government of HK$373,000,000. Any
unspent money will be repaid to the Government when the project is completed.

20. Funds in Trust

At 31 March, 2002, the HA held in trust for the Government an amount of HK$96,879,000
(2001: HK$109,457,000), including accrued interest income.

21. Donations from the Homg Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

During the year ended 31 March, 2002, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust made donations
totalling HK$53,902,000 (2001: HK$117,823,000) to the following hospitals and programmes of the
HA.

 HK$'000

Jockey Club Cares Programme 21,686
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 1,986
Caritas Medical Centre 9,452
Castle Peak Hospital 2,612
Kwai Chung Hospital 5,200
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 495
Prince of Wales Hospital 6,345
Princess Margaret Hospital 1,478
Queen Elizabeth Hospital 1,173
Queen Mary Hospital 28
Ruttonjee and Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 3,343
Tuen Mun Hospital 104

53,902

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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22. Commitments

As at the balance sheet date, the HA had the following commitments:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$’ 000

Capital Commitments
Authorised but not contracted for 1,419,243 2,285,231
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 742,000 966,174

2,161,243 3,251,405

Operating Lease Commitments
Commitments for future minimum payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings which fall due as follows:

Within one year 4,580 6,365
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 4,356 3,374

8,936 9,739

23. Taxation

No taxation is provided as the HA is exempt from taxation under the Hospital Authority Ordinance
1990.

24. Subsidiary

HACare ("the Association") was established by the HA for the principal purpose of providing
healthcare services. The Association was incorporated in Hong Kong as a company limited by
guarantee and not having a share capital. No consolidated financial statements are prepared as the amounts
involved are immaterial.

25. Contingent Liabilities

A number of doctors have filed claims against the HA for alleged failure to grant rest days and statutory
holidays in the past six years. The estimated claims amount to HK$63,474,000. The cases have been
transferred from the Labour Tribunal to the Court of First Instance of the High Court of HKSAR. Since
the actions are at a very early stage and it is not possible to reliably assess the liability which may arise
for the HA and accordingly, no provision was made in the financial statements as at 31 March, 2002.

26. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by members of the HA on 26 September, 2002.

Hospital Authority
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2002
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